City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final
Library Board

225 N. Oneida Street
Appleton WI, 54911

Tuesday, December 14, 2021 4:30 PM City Hall, 6th Floor A/B
1. Call meeting to order
2. Roll call of membership
3. Approval of minutes from previous meeting
21-1708 November 16, 2021 Meeting Minutes
Attachments: November 16 2021 Meeting Minutes.pdf
4. Public Participation and Communication

21-1725 Alex Niemi, APL Network Services Supervisor

Establish Order of the Day

5.

Action Items

21-1709 Bill Register - November 2021

Attachments: Bill Register November 2021.pdf
November 2021 Budget Report.pdf

21-1710 Library 2022 Budget:
- Operational Budget
- Special Revenue Fund
-CIP

Attachments: Library Budget.pdf

Special Revenue Fund ROR.pdf
2022 Library CIP.pdf

21-1711 Table of Organization Change Request

Attachments: TO Change December 2021 memo.pdf

City of Appleton Page 1

Printed on 12/10/2021


http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20455
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=41915278-76d5-4bc2-a78d-fcf4beeaa232.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20472
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20456
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=636e08d0-a2b8-4034-b4a6-75de70557de9.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=38dfdfe8-4791-406d-ba9e-009500aee7c4.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20457
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8912f98a-1be6-4c2d-9720-46508c43dcfe.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7c29277f-e746-439f-b048-711cbf8b0795.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8fc49aa5-038b-428a-b024-f6ceefe5af10.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20458
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2e8508f8-4940-411c-8b8d-986954a0066f.pdf

Library Board Meeting Agenda - Final December 14, 2021

21-1712 OWLS - APL Service Agreement

Attachments: 2022 Service Agreement FINAL.pdf

6. Information Items
A. Administrative Report
21-1713 Library Building Project Update

Attachments: Building Project Update December 2021.pdf

21-1715 OWLS Updates
21-1716 APL Hiring Processes
B. President's Report
21-1717 Trustee Training: Reflections from Welcome Survey
21-1718 Trustee Training and Development Schedule
C. Friends Of Appleton Public Library Report
21-1719 Endowments
21-1720 Used Booksale
21-1721 | Love My Library 2022
21-1722 Upcoming Capital Campaign
D. Staff Updates
21-1724 Community Partnerships Updates
21-1723 Children's Program Updates

Attachments: December 2021 Childrens Programming.pdf

City of Appleton Page 2 Printed on 12/10/2021


http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20459
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=54f9e543-0d6b-451a-a9f3-c2db8d1292c8.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20460
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=84da552a-4ca7-48d7-aad3-29854e35917f.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20462
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20463
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20464
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20465
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20466
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20467
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20468
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20469
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20471
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20470
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1ce38523-9c8b-4b79-a324-b88de029ab67.pdf

Library Board Meeting Agenda - Final December 14, 2021

7. Adjournment

Notice is hereby given that a quorum of the Common Council may be present during this
meeting, although no Council action will be taken.

Reasonable Accommodations for Persons with Disabilities will be made upon Request
and if Feasible.

City of Appleton Page 3 Printed on 12/10/2021



225 N. Oneida Street

City Of Appleton Appleton WI, 54911

Meeting Minutes
Library Board

Tuesday, November 16, 2021

4:30 PM City Hall, 6th Floor A/B

1. Call meeting to order

President Nancy Scheuerman called the meeting to order at 4:31 pm

2. Roll call of membership

Others Present: Owen Anderson, Nicole Casner, Ann Cooksey, Robert
Edwards, Darrin Glad, Adriana McCleer, Colleen Rortvedt, Tasha Saecker,
Maureen Ward

Present: 9 - Hartjes, Kellner, Exarhos, Scheuerman, Mann, Nett, Van Zeeland, Keller

and Brozek

Excused: 1- Looker

Others: 1- Sivasamy

3. Approval of minutes from previous meeting

21-1598 October 19, 2021 Meeting Minutes
Attachments: October 19 2021 Meeting Minutes.pdf
Mann moved, seconded by Exarhos, that the October 19, 2021 Meeting Minutes
be approved. Voice Vote. Motion Carried. (9-0)
4. Public Participation and Communications

Establish Order of the Day

5. Action Items

President Scheuerman called for a motion to place Action Items 21-1599,
21-1600, 21-1601, 21-1603, 21-1604 on a Consent Agenda.

Exarhos moved, seconded by Mann that Action Items 21-1599, 21-1600, 21-1601,
21-1603, 21-1604 be place on a Consent Agenda. Voice Vote. Motion Carried.
(9-0)

Mann moved, seconded by Hartjes that Consent Agenda Items 21-1599, 21-1600,
21-1601, 21-1603 and 21-1604 be approved. Voice Vote. Motion Carried. (9-0)

City of Appleton

Page 1


http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20346
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=babd6831-d166-44d7-ba5e-927407006848.pdf

Library Board Meeting Minutes November 16, 2021

21-1599 Bill Register October 2021

Attachments: Oct 2021 Bill Register.pdf
Oct 2021 Library Budget report.pdf
3Q Friends Oct 2021.pdf

This Report Action Item was approved

21-1600 November 2021 Budget Amendment

Attachments: Budget Amendment Request-102021.pdf

This Report Action Item was approved

21-1601 Report of the Personnel & Policy Committee

Attachments: Personnel & Policy Committee Meeting Minutes 10-29-2021.pdf

This Report Action Item was approved

21-1603 2022 Library Board Meeting Schedule

Attachments: APL Board Meeting Schedule 2022.pdf

This Report Action Item was approved

21-1604 Proposed 2022 Library Closure Dates

Attachments: Proposed Closures 2022 revised.pdf

This Report Action Item was approved

6. Information Items

A. Administrative Report

21-1602 Report of the Planning Committee

Attachments: Planning Committee Meeting Minutes 11-15-2021.pdf
21-1605 Library Building Project Update

Attachments: Building Project Update November 2021.pdf
21-1606 City of Appleton and Library 2022 Budget Process Update

City of Appleton Page 2


http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20347
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5febbfdd-8b8f-40fd-9233-ddbc85121806.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9ee43bd4-78f3-4e5c-aada-e08384026f56.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=04412441-3ce0-4c2c-b442-ab4184a9eee7.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20348
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=03fbffe8-9c3b-4b3d-a516-81f94f4a9940.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20349
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=aa40b25e-9a5e-4ebd-a566-d9a6178bc38c.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20351
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f78da726-2349-465d-8bc4-d428df1d0047.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20352
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=301067f9-de9f-4e7d-bb50-712a5160175a.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20350
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4e07c586-32fc-4a1a-b9ec-c155d31334aa.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20353
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d46e5693-68c1-4082-bb83-0a32f72cc528.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20354

Library Board Meeting Minutes November 16, 2021

21-1607 2021 3rd Quarter Statistics - July, August, September

Attachments: JULY 2021.pdf
AUGUST 2021.pdf

SEPT 2021.pdf

21-1608 3rd Quarter 2021 Friends Grant Funded Program Summaries
Attachments: Friends Grant Funded Program Summaries 3rd Quarter 2021
FINAL.pdf
21-1609 APL Hiring Processes

B. President's Report

21-1610 Trustee Training: Trustee Essentials Chapter 14 - Open Meeting Laws

Attachments: Trustee Training - Open Meetings Laws.pdf

C. Staff Updates
21-1611 Children's Program Updates
21-1612 Community Partnerships Updates

Closed Session

7. Adjournment

Exarhos moved, seconded by Hartjes that the meeting be adjourned. Voice
Vote. Motion Carried. (9-0)

The meeting was adjourned at 5:20 pm

City of Appleton Page 3


http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20355
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=91f32d01-e68f-4e17-a4b4-7a4be5fb7642.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b5416473-cd78-42f1-b8ca-1743052a7976.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b868394a-004c-45a5-86c4-a48e62cfff14.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20356
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=55032bdf-5aa0-4531-b1be-73421ea92602.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20357
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20358
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5a358d5b-53e4-49f5-bebd-eb83f1263669.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20359
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20360

T abed

pv oogaded

AOW pue WOS - yduna

us dnouo sndo4 uaadL

4 S21BO1J13J3D 141D

dueys ‘saLualleg vv
uLppv - S| |0y Jaded
suad

soLl diLz

pusaby pJeog AJedqlLi

[LeW 993 Lwwod d ¥ d

9OL1S bBuLpod Jo|0D

dIGWVYHD S3ITLID XOd

NOILdI¥DS3a

€0° 4T Iv10Ll 1INNODDV
pv >oogaded
pJedd €0°/T d ANI TT T20¢ 0
buLs LIa9ApY
/87081 IVLOL 1INNODDV

/8° 08T
sHbIN "JBUN DAOW pu®e WOS - yduni

pJedd 87" €T d ANI TT TZ0C 0
sabeJdanaq ‘syoeus dnodo sndo4 usvdlL
pJedd 659y d ANI TT 1202 0
SUOLSLAOJUd % poOd
00°S8 IvL0Ll LINNODDV
UoL3ILUGOIDY J4BIS JOJ S9IBDILJLIJDD IJLD
pJedd 00° S8 d ANI TT TZ0C 0
uoL1Luboddy B spaemy
0t "88¢ avLi0l LINNODDV
3T 6TT
saLdJeys ‘saLJdailieg vv
pdJedd zz° /¥ d ANI TT T20¢ 0
J93sLbay ysed / auLydew buLppv - S|[0¥ Jaded
pJedd 8661 d ANI TT T20¢ 0
suad
pJedd 67 €T d ANI TT 1202 0
saLl diz
pJedd 66"/ d ANI TT TZ20¢ 0

0082

buL|LeW S19dded epudbv puaeog AdeuqlLl

pJedd 9¢°TZ d ANI TT 1202 0
sbuL| Le 991LwwodD d B d

pJedd $9°9 d ANI TT T20C 0
uoLlezLuebuo dAOW JO4 SUNDLLS BuLpod JO|0D
pJedxd 7z TyT d ANI TT T¢Z0Z 0

soL|ddns 801440

00°0S€ IVLOL 1INNODDV
IN3IAT ST F¥NLN4 ¥IIWVHD SIILID XOd

d ANI TT TZ0¢ 0

pJedd 00°0S¢€
S®dU8JdJU0D/buLuLeL

-2s3a

:2s3a

+2s3a

+0s3a

+2s3a
:0s3a
+2s3a

£2s3a

+0s3a

:2s3a

:2s3a

:0s3aa

11nd

and

a11n4d

and

11nd

and

a1n4d

and

and

and

and

a1nd

uoLleJisLulwpy AdedqLi

AD3HD

S dAL ¥d/¥V3IA

e|bauLde :qI wedboud
TypJemp3 143sn
€2:9T T20Z/S0/2T :p@3eJauab uoday

¢T899 :3IDIOANI
IXAASXVX Ly N93DV4 066666
00¢T¥9 0TO9T

1899

(V899 3IDIOANI
27899 NV SO¥AD S,43SOCsx OS 066666
I8T99 :3IDIOANI
TZE9# ANIDSWVYS 066666
00£0¢9 0TO09T

T8T99

:3IDIOANI
Iav 80000
0050€9 0TO9T

6T/.9
6T.Z.9

$¥9/9 :3IDIOANI
10d3a 321440 +£0200
€979 3IDIOANI
10d3a 321440 +£0200
6/T99 :3IDIOANI
10d3a 311440 ¥£0Z00
8/T99 :3IDIOANI
10d3a 3IDI440 +£0200

¥¥9/29
€v9/9
6/T99
84T99
6TG/9 3DIOANI
6TS/Z9 TVLSOd S3LVLS d3ILINN £€8STO0
08799 :3DIOANI
08T99 TV1SOd S3LVLS A3ILINN £8STO0
3DIOANI

ANITIN €6€TO00
00TO€9 0TO9T

¥¢5/9
2829

969/9 :3IDIOANI
969/9 0O ¥IAWVHD SITLID XO4 ZTS000
00T0Z9 0T09T
0TO09T

AIN3IWND0a ¥OANIA/LNNODDV

TT/T20¢ OL TT/T¢0Z :d0I¥3d/AVIA

LNNOJIV 19 A9 1SIT 3DIOANI

uoje|ddy jo Ayo



e|bAuLde :qI wedboud

Typaemp3 1Ja9sn
z abed €2:9T T202/S0/¢T :pa3eJauab 1uoday
JDVNS 173 LAVIN-TVM pJedd 9/-6¢ d ANI TT TZ20¢ 0 29729 {86T# LYVW-1VM 066666
773 SUOLSLAOJd % pood G96€ 00£0€9 TZ09T
66°85¢ Iv10Ll 1INNODDV
saL|ddns 773 uozewy :D>S3A 17nd ZT¥/9 :3DIOANI
saL|ddns 713 uozeuy pJedd 668 d ANI TT T202C 0 ZI¥/9 SO0SASHY:SN dDIN NZWY 066666
sosse|D obenbue] BuowH [enlJLA :DS3A T11INd :3IDIOANI
nbuel BUOWH |enlJLA Z8ETSS TZTOZT 00°0S¢ d ANI TT T¢Z0Z 0 SO0TZ9 VNOW VLI¥ $99200
773 soL|ddns 9@>5L}40 G96€ 00TOE9 T209T
£€8°86T IVL1OL 1NNODDV
£8° 86T
suLg abedois agnd :1s3A 11N4 62//9 :3IDIOANI
suLg abedois aqgnd pJaedd gy €9 d ANI TT TZ20¢ 0 62229 8TO9TD0:SN dIN NZWY 066666
suLg abedols agnd uozewy :1S3A 11Nd ¢S¥29  IDIOANI
obeu01S aqnd uozewy pJedd 86°9T1 d ANI TT T202 0 ZSY/29 MZVEATZV:SN dDIN NZWY 066666
3009 | BMAUOLS NOZVWY :DS3d 11nd €I¥/9 :3IDIOANI
08 | emAJ0lS NOZVWY pJedd g6 €€ d ANI TT T¢Z0¢Z 0 €TV/9 €AYY¥4/13:WOD"NOZVIWV 066666
LLeW :D2s3a 11nd 86/99 :3IDIOANI
LLenw pJedd 91T d ANI TT TZ0C 0 86/99  £¥6005209S Od SdSN 066666
S|edsp Apued uozewy :1S3A 1Ind TOC99 3IDIOANI
s|edap Apued uozewy pJedd 87 ¥T d ANI TT TZ20¢ 0 T0OZ99 1TOM8SZxSN dIMW NZWV 066666
J3)eW |[dqeT uozewy :DS3A 11Nd 00799 :3IDIOANI
JeW [9dge] uozeuwy pJedd 868t d ANI TT TZ0¢ 0 00299 MSS68AI=SN dLMN NZWY 066666
soL|ddns 8d1440 00T0€9 12091
SODLAJDS S,UdUp|LYD AdeuqlLi TZ09T
20" ¥6£°9 TV.LOL 0TO09T 9¥0
S870SL°S VL0l LNNODDV
SaALIuUdUI dnoud sndo4  :DS3IA 11N4 SG/¥/9 :3IDIOANI
L1usduI dnous snd>o4 pJedd §6° S d ANI TT TZ0¢ 0 S.v/9 Z0TS# SNIFYOTVM 066666
06669 ‘S
pJend A3Land>as  :d>s3aa T11nd 0T820¢ :3IDIOANI
pJend A1LJnddS 7262TSS TZETTT 0T"956°C d ANI TT TZ0Z 0 020/9 ANV NOILDILO¥d ¥VLS 622200
pJens A3Landas  :1>s3aa T11nd 6//20Z :3IDIOANI
paens A3Lundas $0ZTSS TZLTITT 08°6€L°C d ANI TT T¢Z0¢Z 0 T9G99 ANV NOILD310¥d ¥VLS 6¢2¢00
uoLlebL|qo/SIDeUIUOD J3YIO 006659 0TO09T
€T°82¢- Iv10L 1INNODDV
1LpaJd juswAed suoyd |19 :DS3IA T11INd S$9/9 :3IDIOANI
JuswAed auoyd | [ paedd ¢1°8/2- d ANI TT TZ0¢ 0 Sv9/9 ¥VINTIID "S°N 222200
sauoyd Jepnp|ad 80€TV9 0TO9T

NOILdI¥DS3a AD3FHD NNA MD3HD S dAL ¥d/¥V3IA AIN3IWND0a ¥OANIA/LNNODDV

TT/T202¢ OL TT/TZ0Z :d0I¥dd/AVIA

LNNOJIV 19 A9 1SIT 3DIOANI

uoja|ddy jo Ao




e|bauLde :qI wedboud

TypJempa 1J49sn
£ obed €2:9T T20Z/S0/2T :pd1eJaudb 1aoday
99199 IvioL ¥209T S¥0
00°0¢¢ IV10L 1NNODDV
uoLleluaSaJd AJdBJQLT |BNIJLA  :DS3A 17104 13DIOANI
9dd AdeuqLl |enilJdLA 9S€TSS TZTOZT 00°02¢ d ANI TT TZ20¢ 0 60029 NVW440H NNV NIAVI +//200
weaboud aALssed |9SSIA |NOS ¥IV :DS3A 1104 :3DIOANI
sed |9SS®A |hOS ¥IV /S60SS TZEOTIT 00°00T d ANI TT TZ0C 0 €T8599 3IHOSIW VLST¥N-ISATI 8¢/200
uoLiebL|qo/S1deJIUOD JBYIO 006659 2091
GG SP Iv10Ll 1INNODDV
GG GP
SpJeD SS?ULSNg S9DLAJDS U99L :DS3A 11n4 ¥/¥/9 3IDIOANI
uLsSng S9DLAJDS UDDL pJedd 00°z€ d ANI TT T20¢ 0 Y/¥/9 D7 INIYdVISIAIdVLISIA 066666
syoed 93e34d U el AepL|OY UIBY :DS3IA 11Nd #8899 :3IDIOANI
u a)el AepLioy us91 pJedd 956 d ANI TT T20¢ 0 #8899 €8/8 S3IUOLS STIVHOIW 066666
s)oed 91e34D U el ABpL|OY U :DS3IA 11Nd €8899 :3IDIOANI
u el AepLioy ua91 paedd 66" ¢ d ANI TT T20¢ 0 €8899  6VIZ# SIUOLS NNVOL 066666
saL|ddns adL}40 00TO0€9 2091
00°66¢ Iv10Ll 1INNODDV
uoL1eJisLbay 2dUUPJUOD VSIVA :DS3IA T1Nnd €899 :3IDIOANI
9Y ©OU3J4IJUO0D VSIVA pJedd 00°66¢ d ANI TT TZ0C 0 Z£899 ¥IWWOD3I DOSSVIITIINY 066666
Ss@duaJdajuod/buLuLedt 00TO0Z9 ¥209T
sdLysasulded AlLunwwod AdedqlLi ¥209T
00°T9 aviol €209T S¥0
00°T9 Iv10Ll 1INNODDV
sepodJeg ‘uaded 1dLed8y :DS3a 11Ind 89/€ :3IDIOANI
oJeg ‘usded 1dLed9¥ 9/£TSS TZTOCT 00°T9 d ANI TT TZ0Z 0 8€T/9 IT VOVANVM IIWVOVLNO #E0TOO
saL|ddns adL}40 00TO0€9 €209T
SO LAJDS DL|qnd AJeuqLl €209T
8G7€99 viol TZ09T 5d0
00°0ST IV10L 1NNODDV
sosse|D obenbue] BuowH [enN1JLA :DS3A T11INd :3IDIOANI
nbue BUOWH |BeNIJLA Z8ETSS TZTOZT 00°0ST d ANI TT TZ0¢ 0 SOTZ9 VNOW VLI¥ $99200
uoL1ebL|qo/s1ded1u0d J3Y1o 006659 T209T
9/°SS Iv10LlL 1INNODDV
SYMIVYNS 113 LIVW-1VM  :DS3a 17104 29¥/9 :3DIOANI

NOILdI¥dS3a AD3FHD NNA MD3HD S dAL ¥d/¥V3IA AIN3IWND0a ¥OANIA/LNNODDV

TT/T20¢ OL TT/TZ0C :A0I¥3d/dVIA

LNNOJIV 19 A9 1SIT 3DIOANI

uoje|ddy jo Ayo




e|bauLde :qI wedboud

Typaemp3 1Ja9sn
v obed €2:9T T20Z/S0/2T :p@3eJauab uoday
16" 62
L13XNDOVH TIVOIAV INJIWISANAWIIY NOAdLlvd :DS3A T171Nnd “3DIOANI
NIWISANGWIIY NOYLVd 69ETSS TZTOCT 66 ¥ d ANI TT T20C 0 G6699 AYVYEIT DITdNd THINW 0£6000
119UuDg Sower JUSWRSJINQULIY uodled :1S3A 11Nd I3DIOANI
uswesJnquiay uoJied /860SS TZEOTT S6°HC d ANI TT TZ0¢C 0 Z08G9 AYVYEIT DITaNd THINW 0£6000
SjuswesSJnquLay J3ylo 00S€0S 2€09T
luswsbeuew s|eLdalen AdedqlLl Z€09T
62°T89°6 IvLoL TE09T D¥0
05°885°C IVLOL INNODDV
¢9T00 :1S3a 11nd I3DIOANI
Z¢9T00 Z6€ETSS TZTOZT 0S°885°C d ANI TT TZ0C 0 6€S SIIOYANI IM G/STO0
seo C¢0ETY9 T€09T
OT"T€EL*9 VL0l LNNODDV
29200 :2s3a 1Ind I3DIOANI
79200 /6€TSS TZTOCT OT"TEL 9 d ANI TT TZ0C 0 6€S S3IIDYINT IM S/STO0
JDLJ309 |13 TOETYI9 TE09T
6t 0¢€ Iv10Ll 1INNODDV
pJoD> uoLsu®1x3 ‘saLl 3IsLmML :DS3d 11nd 07899 :3IDIOANI
Lsu9ix3 ‘sall 1simlL pJedd 6t 0¢ d ANI TT T¢Z0¢Z 0 0¥899 10d3a 3IDI440 $£0200
JuswdLnb3 snosue| |92SLI 004¢€9 TEO09T
0S"VET V10l 1INNODDV
(T20Z/€ oseyound Jo|LLW "€) S)SEW a[geysem :dS3a T11Ind Z8T99 :3IDIOANI
*L) SYSBW 9[geysem pJedd 06 €T d ANI TT TZ0C 0 Z8T99 LNIWHSIUAIY MNAVWVEV £TT000
saL|ddns A1sjes 00€¢¢€9 TE09T
04°96T Iv10Ll 1INNODDV
0/°96T
BbuLues|D> s|amolL pue sbny :1S3a 1INd 8T//9 3DIOANI
91D S|amoL pue sbny pJedd p€-6€ d ANI TIT 1202 0 8T/./9 NOILVIOdd0D SVINID +/2000
buLues|d s[amol pue sbny :dS3aA 1Ind Z¥9/9 :3IDIOANI
91D S|[3MmoLl pue sbny pJedd p§-6€ d ANI TT T20¢C 0 Zv9/29 NOILVY0d¥0D SVINID +/7000
buLues|D> s[amol pue sbny :dS3a 1Ind 8TS/9 :3IDIOANI
91D S|3moL pue sbny pJedd p€-6¢€ d ANI TT T20¢C 0 8TS/9 NOILVYOd¥0D SVINID +/2Z000
fuLuea|d> s[amoL pue sbny :3S3a 17IN4 6£899 :3IDIOANI
91D S|3amoL pue sbny pJedd y€-6¢€ d ANI TT TZ0¢ 0 6£899  NOILVYOdYOD SVINID #/2000
buLues|d> s|amoL pue sbny :ds3Ia T11Nd //T99 3DIOANI
91D S|amoL pue sbny pJedd p€r6€ d ANI TT TZ0¢ 0 //T99  NOILVYOd¥0D SVINID #/2000
LeLaolLuec/-juLew buLppLng 0090€9 T€09T
suoLiedado bulp|Lhg AdedqlLl TE09T

NOILdI¥DS3a AD3FHD NNA MD3HD S dAL ¥d/¥V3IA AIN3IWND0a ¥OANIA/LNNODDV

TT/T202¢ OL TT/TZ0¢ :A0I¥3d/dVIA

LNNOJIV 19 A9 1SIT 3DIOANI

>~ uoje|ddy jo Ayo




e|bAuLde :qI wedboud

TdpJsemp3 tJdasn
S abed €2:9T T20Z/S0/2T :po3eJauab 3Jodoy
:ds3aa 1Ind /8%/9 :3IDIOANI
pJedd 86°¢2T d ANI TT T20¢ 0 /8779 D71 ‘AT¥OM AVMVANIH 89%000
:dDs3aa 11nd 29799 :3IDIOANI
p4edd 6661 d ANI TT T20¢ 0 Z9T99 D11 ‘dTd0M AVMVANI4 89+000
S|eLJd1en AdeuqLl B syood 00STE9 Z€09T
0" ¥8T ‘T IVLOL LNNODDV
£/ 12/
SJ9A0D u.wv_um._.. Joo4gd -0S3a 11n4d 0¢..9 +3DTIOANI
sJaA0D 19)del oog pJedd 98°6/5 d ANI TT 1202 0 02//9 INITINO-0DdY) 066666
SJ944Nng JdSLp JOJ Jd1em pa||[Lista :DS3a 17nd #¥899 :IDIOANI
404 Jo3em pal|LasLad pJedxd /8 TyT d ANI TT TZ0¢ 0 ¥7899  DNI SY3ILVM WNIWIYd 066666
sapodJeg ‘uaded 1dLedey  :DsS3IA TINd 89/€ 3IDIOANI
dJeg ‘daded 1dLad9Y 9/€TSS TZTOLZT S€°¥6¢ d ANI TT TZ0¢ 0 8€T/9 IT VOVANVM JIWVOVLNO ¥E0TO0
sdwels NMYYQHLIM :DS3d 1704 €¥899 :3IDIOANI
sdwels NMVYQHLIM pJedd 96 /9T d ANI TT T20¢ 0 €899 dS ® NDIS ‘dWVLS XO04 975000
saL|ddns a>L4}0 00TO0€9 ¢e09T
68°G€C IvLOL LNNODDV
00°SOT
INIWISUNGWIIY TVINILVW NO¥Llvd :DS3A 17nd 1IDIOANI
I3¥ TVIYILVYIN NOYLVd 99€TSS TZTO0ZT 00" €T d ANI TT TZ0¢ 0 12494} aaoLl >AVW 866666
SINIWISUNGWIIY TVIHILVW NO¥Llvd :DS3a 17nd T3IDIOANI
I3Y¥ TVIYILVIW NO¥Lvd Z9ETSS TZTOZT 007722 d ANI TT T20¢ 0 €0TZ9 SY00¥9 14390¥ 866666
INIWISUNGWITY IVIYILVW NOYLlvd :DS3A 17nd $3IDIOANI
I3¥ IVIYILVW NO¥Llvd /8TTSS TZ.TITT 00°09 d ANI TT T20¢ 0 68599 SYY3IA AUVW 866666
SINIWISUNGWIIY IVIYILVW NO¥Lvd :DS3A 17nd 1IDIOANI
I3¥ IVIYILVW NOYLVd £860SS TZEOTT 00°S d ANI TT T20Z 0 97859 0ShJuJ0g-3L|0S e|3bUVY 866666
J9pLaUYydS ueof juawasJdnquiLay uodied -2SsS3a 11nd :3DIOANI
uswasSJNquLIY uoJled €9€TSS TZT0ZT 00°ST d ANI TT T20Z 0 86699 ALNNOD JLLINIYVW TSST00
BULSEY BLALLO-1USWISJNQUWLIY |BLJDIBW UOJIBd :DS3A T11N4 13DIOANI
Loy |eLJ9leW uoJdied GITTSS TZ.TTIT 00702 d ANI TT T20¢ 0 2/£99 A¥V¥EIT ALNNOD ¥00A ST9TOO0
00° TS
J9PLBUYDS UBOL JUBWDSJNQWLIY uoJled :DS3A T1N4 T3DIOANI
uswasJnquLay uoJled S6ETSS TZTOZT 00°0¢€ d ANI TT T20¢ 0 96699 ALNNOD V¥OVdNVM 8/+T00
K927 A31199 JuDWRSJINQWLIY |BLJdIBW uoJied :DS3IA 1704 13DIOANI
L9y |eLJd1eW uoJdled 9TOTSS TZEOTT 00°TZ d ANI TT T20¢ 0 05899 ALNNOD V¥OVdNVYM 8/+T00
NVDSIIT-ILIHM YNIYIS-LINIWISYNEIWIIY TVI¥ILVW NO¥Lvd :DS3a 11Nnd 1IDIOANI
I3¥ IVIYILVW NO¥LVd 2/ETSS TZTI02T S6' T d ANI TT TZ0Z 0 €10/9 9I7 ALINNWWOD VAIINO £20T00

NOILdI¥DS3a AD3FHD NNA MD3HD S dAL ¥d/¥V3IA AIN3IWND0a ¥OANIA/LNNODDV

TT/T202¢ OL TT/TZ0Z :d0I¥dd/AVIA

LNNOJIV 19 A9 1SIT 3DIOANI

uoje|ddy jo Ayo




e|bAuLde 1l wedboud

TdpJsemp3 1Jd9asn
9 abed €2:9T T20Z/S0/2T :po3eJauab 3Jodoy
pJedd 6/ /¥ d ANI TT T20Z 0 65929 NOZVWY £86T00
:0S3a 11n4d 869/9 :3dDIOANI
pJedd 6€' 06/ d ANI TT T20Z 0 85979 NOZVWY £86T00
:0S3a 11nd /15979 :3DIOANI
pJedd 9/°6TT d ANI TT TZ0Z 0 15979 NOZVWY £86T00
:2S3a 11nd 969/9 :3DIOANI
pJedd 66T d ANI TT 1202 0 959/9 NOZVWY £86T00
:2S3a 11nd GG9/9 3DIOANI
pJedd 66" 6% d ANI TT T20C 0 $59/9 NOZVWY £86T00
:0s3a 11n4d 28899 :3DIOANI
pJedd /6°TT d ANI TT 1202 0 28899 NOZVWY £86T00
:0Ss3a 11Ind T8899 :dDIOANI
pJedd 6665 d ANI TT TZ0Z 0 18899 NOZVWY £86T00
:0S3a 11nd 08899 :dDIOANI
pJedd 66" ¢T d ANI TIT TZ0C 0 08899 NOZVWY £86T00
12s3a 1104 /%899 IDIOANI
pJedd $6° 6% d ANI TT 1202 0 /%899 NOZVWY £86T00
:0S3a 11nd 9¥899 :3IDIOANI
pJedd 66" 6% d ANI TT T202 0 9%899 NOZVWY £86T00
:D0s3a 11Ind 88T99 :dDIOANI
pJedd 66" v d ANI TT TZ0¢ 0 88T99 NOZVWY £86T00
:0S3a 11nd 98T99 :3DIOANI
pJedd /769 d ANI TIT TZ0Z 0 98199 NOZVWY £86T00
:0s3a 11n4d 68199 :3DIOANI
pJedd 00° /€ d ANI TT 1202 0 68199 TVDIYOLSIH INIT 00S $9ZT00
08°02/ ‘T
:2S3a 11nd €029 :3IDIOANI
pJedd €£°900‘T d ANI TT T20C 0 €0229 3dvLl 1SIMAIN 688000
:0s3a 11nd 0T9/9 :3DIOANI
pJedd 80" €¥0‘T d ANI TT T20Z 0 0T9/9 3dvl 1SIMaIN 688000
:0S3a 11nd qa8v/9 :dDIOANI
pJedd 402052 d ANI TT TZ0Z 0 S8¥/9 3dvLl LSIMAIN 688000
:0S3a 11nd 9T899 :3DIOANI
pJedd 64'852‘9 d ANI TT TZ0Z 0 91899 3dvLl LSIMAIN 688000
12s3a 1104 ST899 :3IDIOANI
pJedd z0'£66 d ANI TT TZ0Z 0 ST899 3dvLl 1SIMAIN 688000
-2S3a 11nd T9T99 :3IDIOANI
pJedd 66 SYT‘T d ANI TT T20Z 0 T9T99 3dvLl 1SIMAIN 688000
:0Ss3a 11Ind 097199 :dDIOANI
pJedd §8°T/Z°T d ANI TT T20¢ 0 09199 3dV1l 1SIMAIN 688000
€799T0€ /9T @dLoAUT | AdeuaqL] dL[gnd uola|ddv :d>S3a 1Ind €799T0£/9T :3IDIOANI
gqL1 oL gnd uola|ddy G8TTSS TZ/TIT O0'TET‘T d ANI TT T20¢ 0 81299 *DNI ‘1IN3D¥3AW 028000
:2S3a 11nd ¥¢//9 3IDIOANI
pJedd 00°TZZ‘¥ d ANI TT T20C 0 $2//9 N¥v3IT 3DVONID / 3TVD 0$5000
16°S.T
]

NOILdI¥dS3a AD3FHD NNA MD3HD S dAL ¥d/¥V3IA AIN3IWND0a ¥OANIA/LNNODDV

TT/T202¢ OL TT/TZ0Z :d0I¥dd/AVIA

LNNOJIV 19 A9 1SIT 3DIOANI

uoje|ddy jo Ayo




e|bAuLde :qI wedboud

TdpJsemp3 1Jd9asn
/ abed €2:9T T20Z/S0/2T :po3eJauab 3Jodoy
:0S3a 11nd c6v/.9 :3DIOANI
ULMUQ Q¢ ¢€¢/ d ANI TT TZ20¢ 0 €617/9 A¥IS AYVHELIIT WVIONI 965200
12s3a 11n4 26%/9 :3IDIOANI
ULmua IV 02T d ANI TT TZ20¢ 0 2617/9 AY3S AYVIIIT WVIONI 96£700
:0s3a 11Ind T6¥%29 :3dDIOANI
paedd S v/ d ANI TT T20C 0 T6¥/9 A¥3S AYVIEIT WYIONI 96£200
:0Ss3a 11Ind 06v.29 :dDIOANI
pJead pe-9/¢ d ANI TT 1202 0 06729 AY3IS AYVIEIT WYYONI 96£Z00
:0S3a 11nd 681%/9 :dDIOANI
pJedd 0¢-68¢ d ANI TT 1202 0 6817/9 A¥3IS AYVIEZIT WVEONI 96£Z00
12s3a 1104 88%/9 :3IDIOANI
vLmug /€791 d ANI TT TZ20¢ 0 8817/9 AdIAS AYVIEGIT WVIONI 96£200
:2S3a 11n4d ¢Z899 :3DIOANI
pJedd €y T1Z°T d ANI TT 120C 0 27899 A¥3IS AYVHEIT WYHONI 96£Z00
12s3a 1104 TZ899 :3IDIOANI
ULMUQ 80"'¥Z9°T d ANI TT TZ0¢ 0 TZ899 AY3S AUVHIIT WVIONI 96£200
:0s3a 11nd 02899 :3DIOANI
pJedd TT'//1 d ANI TT 1202 0 02899 AY3S AMVIEIT WVEONI 96£Z00
:0S3a 11nd 61899 :dDIOANI
thua AR VA d ANI TT TZ20¢ 0 61899 AYUIAS AYVIEGITT WVYONI 96£200
:2S3a 11nd 8T899 :3DIOANI
ULmua TT"8ST d ANI TT TZ20¢ 0 S8T899 AYUIS AYVIEITT WVIONI 96£200
12s3a 1104 /T899 :3IDIOANI
thug 227699 d ANI TT TZ0¢ 0 /T899 AYIS AUVIEIIT WVIODNI 96£200
12s3a 11n4 T/T99 :3IDIOANI
pJedd €/°229°2 d ANI TT 1202 0 T/T99 AY3IS AYVIEIT WY¥ONI 96£200
:2s3a 17n4 0/199 :3IDIOANI
pJedd 1602 d ANI TT T20C 0 0/T99 A¥3AS AYVIGIT WVIONI 96£200
:0S3a 11nd 69199 :3DIOANI
pJedd £€6-€68°T d ANI TT T202 0 69799 AY3S AMVIEIT WVEONI 96£Z00
:2S3a 11nd 89199 :3DIOANI
ULMUQ 68°20¢ d ANI TT TZ20¢ 0 89T99 AYU3IS AYVELGIT WVYONI 96£200
12s3a 11n4 /9799 :3IDIOANI
ULmua €T°9¢€S d ANI TT TZ20¢ 0 /9T99 AY3IS AYVYEGIT WVIODNI 96£200
:0s3a 11Ind 997199 :dDIOANI
pJedd Sy 0€ d ANI TT T20C 0 99T99 AY¥3AS AAVIEIT WVIONI 96£200
:0Ss3a 11Ind G9T99 :dDIOANI
pJedd 09°€80°T d ANI TT 1202 0 G9T99 AYIS AUVIEIT WYIONI 96£200
12s3a 17n4 #9199 :3IDIOANI
pJedd €8 pTE d ANI TT 1202 0 #9199 AY3S AYVIEIT WVEONI 96£Z00
12s3a 1104 €9T99 :3IDIOANI
vLmug 87°66T d ANI TT T¢20¢ 0 €9TO9 AY3IS AYVIIIT WVIODNI 96£200
£/6°987'T
:2S3a 11nd €2/./79 :3DIOANI
pJedd TT'8- d ANI TT 1202 0 €2/19 NOZVWY £86T00
12s3a 1104 19979 :3IDIOANI
pJaedd §6° T d ANI TT 1202 0 19979 NOZVIWY £86T00
:2S3a 11nd 099/9 :3DIOANI
pJedxd 6/ /¢~ d ANI TT 1202 0 099/9 NOZVIWY £86T00
:0s3a 11Ind 659/9 :dDIOANI

NOI1ldT¥DS3d AD3FHD NNA MD3HD S dAL ¥d/¥V3IA AIN3IWND0a ¥OANIA/LNNODDV

TT/T202¢ OL TT/TZ0Z :d0I¥dd/AVIA

LNNOJIV 19 A9 1SIT 3DIOANI

uoje|ddy jo Ayo




8

abed

pJedd

pJedd

¥9S800ZANI ZZE€TSS
6LS800ZANI ZZE€TSS
ST9Z00CANI ZZETSS
9/€9002ANI 8YTTSS

TZTOCT
TZTOCT
TZTOCT
TC¢LTTT

paedd
pJaedd
pJedd
pJedd
paedd
pJedd
pJaedd
pJedd
pJedd
pJead
pJaedd
pJedd
pJedd
pJedd
pJeod
paedd

pJaedd

NOILdI¥DS3a AD3FHD NNY

006+
00°S¥T‘€
p8 0Ty 1 |
09° 22§
ST vL

St 28z
vS 18
90°120°¥¢
l4ak:147
TT°0LY
91" €42
L8°LTT°C
Ly 0T
0" 0T
267 86T
80985
06" 2L~
60°262'T
144N
LT T8¢
27628
vy Tve
2L TS
TT°96¢€
08" 22

MND3HD

ANI

ANI

ANI

ANI

ANI

ANI

ANI

ANI

ANI

ANI

ANI

ANI

ANI

ANI

ANI

ANI

ANI

ANI

ANI

ANI

ANI

ANI

ANI

1T
1T

11
1T
11
11

11
11
1T
11
11
1T
11
1T
11
11
1T
1T
11
11
1T
11
11

HOLE (¢

T20¢ 0
:2s3a

Te0¢ 0
79S800ZANI  :DS3d

T20¢ 0
6/S800¢ANI  :DS3d

Te0¢ 0
ST9Z00CANI  :DS3d

Te0¢ 0
9/€900¢ANI :DS3da

Te0¢ 0
+D2S3a

Te0¢ 0
+0s3a

Teo¢c 0
+0s3a

T20¢ 0
:2s3a

T20¢ 0
:2S3a

Teo¢ 0
:DS3a

Teo¢ 0
:0s3a

Tc0¢ 0
HOLE (¢

Tc0¢ 0
+2s3a

Teo¢ 0
HOLE(¢

T20¢ 0
:D0S3a

Te0¢ 0
:D0s3a

Teoc 0
-2s3a

Tc0¢ 0
HOLE (¢

T20¢ 0
:2S3a

Te0¢ 0
+D2S3a

Te0¢ 0
+0s3a

Te0¢c 0

S dAL ¥d/¥V3IA

1nd

1nd

1nd

1nd

11nd

1nd

11nd

1nd

1n4d

1nd

11nd

11nd

17n4d

1nd

1nd

a1n4d

17nd

1nd

1nd

an4d

1nd

17n4d

1nd

/8T99
S8T99

67699
87699
L¥699
12999

80429
JAVYAA®)
90279
S0/Z49
Y0429
6T9/9
8T9/9
L1979
9T9/9
ST9/9
Y1929
€T9/9
1949
11949
96v/9
S6¥/.9
Y6129

AIN3IWND0a

e|bauLde 1aI wedboud
TypJemp3 143sn
€2:9T T20Z/S0/2T :p@3eJauab uoday

/8T99 :3IDIOANI
1DIAYIAALID-IIXV V1Vd 066666
G8T99 :3IDIOANI

NIHSIT8nd 3INIT INTVA 066666

*dDIOANI
NIHSIT8Nd 3INOLSMOVIE £85Z00
dDIOANI
NIHSIT8nd 3INOLSMOVIE £85200
*dDIOANI
NIHSIT9Nd 3INOLSMOVIE £85200
+dDIOANI
NIHSIaNd INOLSMOVIE £85200

80//9 :3IDIOANI
AYVYEIT WYIONI 96£200
/0//9 3IDIOANI
AYVYEIT WYYONI 96£200
90//9 :3IDIOANI
AdVIEIT WYYONI 96£Z00
G0//9 :3IDIOANI
AdVIEIT WYIONI 96£Z00
$0//9 :3IDIOANI
AYVYEIT WYIONI 96£200
6T9/9 :3IDIOANI
AYVYEIT WYYONI 96£200
8T19/9 :3IDIOANI
AYVYE9IT WYIONI 96£200
/T9/9 :3IDIOANI
AdVIEIT WYIONI 96£Z00
979/9 :3DIOANI
AYVYEIT WYIONI 96£200
6T9/9 :3IDIOANI
AYVYEIT WYIONI 96£200
$19/9 :3IDIOANI
AYVYEIT WYAONI 96£200
€T19/9 :3IDIOANI
AYVYEIT WYYONI 96£200
¢T19/9 *3IDIOANI
AYVYEIT WYYONI 96£200
171979 :3IDIOANI
AYVYEIT WYAONI 96£200
96%/9 :3IDIOANI
AYVYEIT WYIONI 96£200
61729 3IDIOANI
AYVYEIT WYIONI 96£200
v61v/9 3IDIOANI
AYVYEIT WYYONI 96£200

AY3S
AY3S
AY3S
AY3S
Ad3S
AY3S
AY3S
AY3S
Ad3S
AY3S
AY3S
AY3S
AY3S
AY3S
Ad3S
AY3S

AY3S

¥OANIA/LNNODDV

TT/T202¢ OL TT/TZ0Z :d0I¥dd/AVIA

LNNOJIV 19 A9 1SIT 3DIOANI

uoje|ddy jo Ayo



6 abed

9sea] JaLdod 62ZTSS TZLTITT
dWOD X0¥3X Vv - 510D pJeod
LLouad ‘spedL a|ddv pJeod

9beu01S pLewsDqqny paedd

LSUd3IX3 ‘SaLl 1ISLML pJead

pJedd
pJeod
pJead
pJaedd
pJedd
pJaedd
pJedd
pJead
paedd

pJaedd

NOILdI¥DS3a AD3FHD NNY

MND3HD

627922 Iv10LlL 1INNODDV
9sesT JaLdod :dS3a 11n4d
€L°TCY d ANI TT TZ0Z 0
3DBJ3U0D J3LdOD  ANVAWOD XO0¥3IX V - 510D :1S3a T11nd
94" PS¢ d ANI TT T20¢ 0
JuLeW B sJdLeddy dLnb3
00°0S€‘€ IV.LOL INNOJDV
9sed pJeoqAay pue | Ldudd ‘spedlL a|ddy :>S3a 11n4d
00°0S€‘¢€ d ANI TT TZ0¢ 0
JuswdLnb3l snosue| [9DSLIW
Yy 9¢€ Iv10L 1INNODDV
vy 9¢
soxog 9beuols plLewdaqqny :dS3a 11nd
Sy ve d ANI TT TZO0¢ 0
pJ0D UOLSU1IX3 ‘S9LL AISLML :DS3a 11n4d
66°TT d ANI TT TZ0Z 0
soL|ddns 251440
S9DLAUSS NJOMIIN AdeuqL]
8%°280°v9 IvioL ZEO9T S¥0
§57799°29 TV.LOL LNNODDV

88°T60°C d ANI TT TZ0¢ 0
TE°889 Y d ANI TT T20C 0
00°6TT d ANI TT TZ0¢ 0
€erelLe‘e d ANI TT TZ0C 0
I32n4t d ANI TT TZ0¢ 0
1A d ANI TT TZ0¢ 0
S6°%S0°T d ANI TT T20C 0
6" €S d ANI TT TZO0¢ 0
86°G¢€ d ANI TT TZ20¢ 0
56°8¢ d ANI TT TcZ0¢ 0

S dAL ¥d/¥V3IA

+Js3a
-2s3a
:2s3a
:0s3aa
:0s3aa
:2s3a
+2s3a
-Js3a
:0s3aa

:0s3a

and

and

a11n4d

and

a1nd

and

a11n4d

an4d

a1nd

and

8/€99

€2529

T2S49

17899
0¥899

0TZ/9
602/9
5929
L6v/9
98v/9
6/899
8/899
87899
899
06T99

AIN3IWND0a

e|bauLde :qI wedboud
TypJemp3 143sn
€2:9T T20Z/S0/2T :p@3eJauab uoday

T¥8Z¥¥/LT0S 3IDIOANI
VIDNVYNI4 09¥vd S113aM T96T00

€7S/9 3IDIOANI
HOVIW SS3INISNG NJI3AOW TT6000
008TV9 €€09T

TZSZ9 3IDIOANI
*DNI “LINIWNIYIA0D MAD 6T9T00
00£2¢€9 €€09T

I$899 :IDIOANI
10d3d 3DI440 $£0200
07899 :3IDIOANI
10d3a 31>I440 $£0200
00T0€9 €€09T
€€09T

0TZ/9 :3IDIOANI
1SIAa IATIAYINO 066666
60//9 :3IDIOANI
1SIAa IATIAYINO 066666
$59/9 :3IDIOANI
009 NYOH IHL:TCT 066666
/6%/9 3IDIOANI
1SIAa IATIAYINO 066666
98%/9 :IDIOANI
7¥86¢26£0SE6VPIZTSdN 066666
6/899 :3IDIOANI
ddL+1S3IM NOSWOHL 066666
8/899 :3IDIOANI
ad1ly1S3IM NOSWOHL 066666
87899 :3IDIOANI
AISNVSNVAY¥L: 1VdAVd 066666
G#899 :IDIOANI
SM009 A¥LINNOD:VAY 066666
06T99 :3IDIOANI
YILNNHAISNW: TVdAAVd 066666

¥OANIA/LNNODDV

TT/T20¢ OL TT/TZ0C :Ad0I¥3d/dVIA

LNNOJIV 19 A9 1SIT 3DIOANI

uoje|ddy jo Ayo



e|bauLde :qI wedboud
TpJaemp3a 1a9sn
0T abed €2:9T T20Z/S0/2T :po3eJauab 3Jodoy

#x SPJBMPI "7 14940y AQq p21RJBUID - 1Y0dI¥ 40 AN s

pund |eJdausd (OQT dNN4

€0°992 VT avioL €£€09T D¥O0
0€°1¥8°S IVL0L 1NNODDV
0€°TH8°S
pnoD ‘3usuddJby 9DLAJIS ‘uoLidLadsgns epndeddeg :DS3IA 17nd 22579 :3IDIOANI
3dLJosqgns epndedJeg pJedd 08°9T18°T d ANI TT T20¢ 0 22579 "ONI ‘1INaWNIIA0D MAD 6T9T00
Lemauay uoL1dLudsgnsS SOHdOS :1S3ad 11nd 02529 :3IDIOANI
uoL1dLudsqns SOHdOS pJedxd 0S5 420 ¥y d ANI TT TZ20¢ 0 02529 °"DNI ‘1IN3IWNIIA0D MAD 6T9T00
uolaLsinbdv auemijos 00ST89  €€£09T
007292y IVL0L LNNODDV
DNI ‘D100 :D2S3d 11nd TI¥29 :3IDIOANI
DNI ‘D720 pJed>d 00°29Z‘v d ANI TT TcZ0¢ 0 TTVv.9 DNI ‘D720 066666
uoLlebL|qo/SIded1uod Jaylo 006659 €€09T

NOI1ldT¥DS3d AD3FHD NNA MD3HD S dAL ¥d/¥V3IA AIN3IWND0a ¥OANIA/LNNODDV

TT/T202 OL TT/T¢0¢ :d0I¥dd/dVIA

LNNOJIV 19 A9 1SIT 3DIOANI

“siuntu %5, - ===z uojiddy 40 AND




pngpaALb :aI wedboud

Typaemp3 1Jasn
T abed €T:9T T202/50/2T :po1edauab 1dodoy
%0 " 00°68T‘8ST 00" 00° 00° 68T ‘8ST 68T °8ST sabuLad 000ST9
%0°00T 92°¥6S°‘L2- 00" Yy /58°¢C 9/ ¥6S°.¢ 0 0 Aed uoLiedeA Q0STT9
%Y " G6 L0°STV'T 00" L0°T€8°C €6°¢TT 6C 825 °0¢€ 826 °0¢€ sebem awLl-1J4ed 0080T9
%8/,  T8°095°08 00" 6€°TS0°S¢ 6T 0T8°88¢ TZ€°69¢€ TLE69€ soLJe|es JeLnbay Q0TOT9
%0°00T 6S°2¥2°C 00" 6S°/66- 65 /v - 0 0 sjuswasJnquiay J49Yyio 00S€0S

%€ TST LL7606°6.T 007 0€"0T8'SS LL°TI8°0ES-  T96°0SE- 9V ‘€8€- UOLIBIISLULWPY AJBJGLT TV.IOL

%078y  €T1°2L0°89 00 $870SL'S 18765629 LEO'TET  L£S'9L uo11e61q0/SIOLIIUOD JBYIO 006659
%9°6S  L119¥9 00° €182~ €8°€56 009'T 009'T sauoyd Je|n| |3 OETHI
%0°96  €0°6TT 00 00’ 1678287 8762 8Y6°C suoyda a1 Z0£TH9
%C°SL 9578507 00 A r° 62219 8878 8871 BULSLIIIAPY 00ZTHI
% TSE TE€9L'T- 00 00° TE €Y ‘2 002 00T BuLluLdd SpLSINO Z00ZEI
%S TE  SETSZE'T 00 £8708T 597609 SE6'T SET'T SUOLSLAOJd 7 PO04 00/0£9
%0°02T 167691~ 00 00758 2676T0°T 058 058 UoL11uB0>3Y B SpJBMY 00SOE9
%S9 L97ESL 00 00° €7 OVY T 0022 0022 S95US211 B SdLYSJIIqWIW 00EOEI
%L°9L  £07280'T 00° 0887 €67755°€ S€9'y S€9'y saL1ddns 331410 00TOEY
%0°00T 006~ 00 00’ 00°60T ‘€2 00T ‘€2 00T ‘€2 S1LUIad BUL}JIBd 009079
%0°00T 00°09- 00 00°0€ 00709 0 0 usWRSINAWLIY 3683 [ LW 002029
%3°8T_ 8/°%SL'6 00 00°0S€ 22'592'2 02021 026‘% $95UB.34U0d/6uULULBIL 00T0Z9
%0°00T 00°0Z- 00 00°0T 00°0Z 0 0 @duBJNSUI 5311 00¥STI
%0°00T /8°T06'9- 00° S8 169 £87106'9 0 0 9DUBINSUI |BIUA ZOESTY
%0°00T 8E'€/508- 00 68°S8T'8 8E"€/5 08 0 0 9DURINSUT Y3 [B3H TOESTI
%0°00T 88°680°8Z- 00" €97 E2V'T 88768087 0 0 1UBWR 139 00ZST9
%0°00T €976SZ0€- 00 S21Iv9°C €9765/°0€ 0 0 ¥2I4 00TSTI
%0° 00°80S‘6.T 00 00° 00" 80S6/T  805'6/T s9buLId 000ST9
%0700T 95°262‘Lp- 00" £67500°S 957262 LY 0 0 Aed uoL1eSeA 00STT9
%0°00T /b'TEQ'T- 00 00" Ly TER'T 0 0 Aed 32LS 00PTTI
%€ 0/ 9878097 00 0L Tty 1" T8T*9 0628 0628 sabem auL1-1.ed 0080TI
%0°00T 00009~ 00 0" 007009 0 . 0o sobem duwil || 00¥0T9
%0°LL  9E6Y6'SOT 00 ¥€ 668 0€ 9" ETL PSE £99°097  £99°09% saLJe|es Je|nbay 00TOTY
%" €8T €1 9bb'TE 00 00 €1°9Y6°89-  00S‘/E- 0 SIUBWRSINQULY JBYIO 00SE0S
%0°00T 26°9/2°T 00 80" /8- 2679/7'T- 0 0 SLBLIOWAW B SUOLIBUOD 000Z0S
%0°00T 00" 00 00° 00°000°0€-  000‘0E-  000°0f- A343doud A11> 4o [BIUY 00STOS
%T'€T_ 61°S09Z- 00" €252~ 18" %26 €~ 000‘0€-,  000°0€- 9JLAJDS 404 S3DJBYD |BJIUID 00T08Y
%0°00T 00" 00 00" 00°9€2‘T60'T- 9€°T60°T- 9EL‘T60T- SPLY B S:URJD AJRJGLT 00ZETH

10D/3sn 135and S3AONVIGWNDONT vNnLdov dliw IVNLOV dlA 135and dOodddv pund |eJausd 00T
12d 319VIIVAV d3SIAIY TVNIDIHO -d0d4 SLINNODDV

TT TZ0¢ o4

130d3d 139dNg 31va-OL1-dV3IA

uojejddy jo Ayo




pngpaALb :aI wedboud

TypJaemp3 1Jasn
l obed €T:9T T20Z/S0/ZT :poiedausb 1uoday
%0°00T S2°99€‘€¢- 00° 89°/€6°T G2799€°€e 0 0 vOId4 O0TST9
%0° 00°SZE 9T 00" 00" 00" SZE9VT SZE9VT sebuLJd 000ST9
%0°00T Sy evliSe- 00° 0T 0TZC Sy Tvlse 0 0 Aed uoLledeA 00STT9
%2 2LT 85 VEEOT- 00° 95 ¥2S‘T 85 ¥EE 9T 00049 0 sobem swLl-1Jed 0080T9
%L 8 22759565 00" 86 V9T ‘¥¢ 827919 ‘¥8¢ T vve TANAN 443 salJe|es Je|nbdd O00TOT9
%0°00T 00°S2T‘C 00° 00" 00°S2T¢- 0 0 SjuswasJnquLay 4940 00SE€0S
sdLysJaulded AjLunwwod AdeJdqLl $#209T|

%L S8 22 S6%°90T 00" ¥8°0TZ ¥S 827285909 8/0°€TL TSE“L69 S®DLAJDS Dl|gnd AdedqLl IVLOL
%0 " 00°TSZ€C 00° 00" 00" TSL €T ¥2s‘8 uoL1ebL|qo/s1ded1uod J3Yylo 006659
%L°0S 99°¥66‘T 00° 00°T9 ¥€7500°¢ 000°¥ 005 ‘€ saLLddns 831440 00T0£9
%CST 91" ¥.1°C 00° 00" 87 06¢€ §95°¢ §95°C S@dUuaJdjuod/buLuLedL 00T0Z9
%0°00T 06°¢6T- 00° 00°T¢ 06" 6T 0 0 9ouBJNSUI 34 L7 00¥ST9
%0 00T SZ TSP‘S- 00° 65" /8¥ SLTTSKES 0 0 @JUeJNSUT |eluad ¢0EST9
%0°00T om.mOm”owl 00" ww.mOﬁ”w wm.mOm”ow 0 0 9dUeJNSUT Yi|esaH TOESTI
%0°00T £2°¢C69 ¥i- 00° 767596 T L1769 V¢ 0 0 JuswaJ L33y 00¢ST9
%07 00T ¥. ¥S5T‘8Z- 00° 2076922 v, ¥S2°8¢ 0 0 VOI4 00TST9
%0 " 00" £22°LET 00° 00° 00" LT2°L€T 222 L€T sabuLJd 000ST9
%0°00T 62°L£L°9€- 00° 29°¥SE‘S 617/€L°9¢€ 0 0 Aed uoLiedeA Q0STIY
%0 00T ¥€°256°9- 00" 00" ¥€7256°9 0 0 Aed YOLS 00¥TT9
%0°T8  ¥0"LE£2°/LT 00° 02°829°8 96°0.2°€L 80506 80506 sobem awLl-1Jed 0080T9
%v°9L SS*¥/¢°/0T 00° TO"vTIE‘ L2 ST ¢ST 8ve L2V SSY L2V 5SSy salJde|es Je|nbay Q0TOT9
%L L YS9 TLE- 00" 00" 9" 8¢~ 00~ 00¥- SjuswasJnquLlayd J3Yyio 00S€0S

%0° €8 26°12.°66 00° 06" %10 ¢¥ 80°S€8“/8Y £55°/8S S0€ ‘995 S9JLAJSS S, UBJPLLYD AdedqLi IvioL
%S TSE 08°650°0T- 00° 00°0ST 08°6S0 VT 000¥ 000°T uoL1eb 1| qo/s1deJd1u0d JdYlo 006659
%9°9 16" VT8 € 00° VAR €0°04¢ S80°Y 0 SuoLsLAaoJdd 7 pood 00£0€9
%2°8€ Ty €6£°0T 00° 287 LSy 6576859 616°9T 218¢ soL|ddns 931440 00TOE9
%0°00T 00°0CT- 00° 00°09 00°0¢T 0 0 judwasJnquiLay abes| LW 002029
%L°9L 26°0S0°T 00° 00" 80 ¥SE“€E SOV ‘v Sov‘v S®@dUuaJajuod/buLuLedL 00T0Z9
%0°00T OT"SST- 00° OT"vT 0T "SST 0 0 °dUeJINSUT 94L7 00¥ST9
%0"00T 62°9/8°p- 00° 96°/0§ 62°9/8°v 0 0 9dUBJNSUT |B1uad ¢0EST9
%0°00T SS'TZE°89- 00° 0878502 SSTTLE89 0 0 9JUBJNSUT Y1 |eaH TOESTI
%0°00T S6°96T°¢e- 00" 987€88°T S6796T°2¢ 0 0 JuswadJ L1 00ZST9
%0 00T OF S.S‘vZ- 00° 69°¥80°C (A VARE 24 0 0 VOId4 00TST9

10D/3sn 135and S3AONVIGWNDONT vNnLdov dliw IVNLOV dlA 135and dOodddv pund |eJauad 00T

12d 319VIIVAV d3SIAIY TVNIDIHO -d0d4 SLINNODDV
TT TZ0¢ o4

130d3d 139dNg 31va-OL1-dV3IA

uojejddy jo Ayo




pnqpaA |6 :aI weaboud
TdpJaemp3 rJasn
m obed €T:9T T202/S0/2T :po3eJsusb 3uodoy

JuoWwabeue S|eLJa1BW AJBJ]LT ZS09T

%19/  SY S.S‘v0T 00" 12°25¥°8T 66 72/ €¢€¢ 867 °8¢Y 862°8¢Y suolledado buLp|Lng AueaqLi IvioL

%T°T9 €V 66V TL 00" 00" LS €LV TTT €/6°€8T €/6°€8T sabueyd saLiL|Lded 00079
%0 00°00% 00" 00" 00" 00% 00% juLew % sJiedoy dinb3a Q08TH9
%3 ¥6° 86T 00" 00" 90°ST 0002 0002 julen ® sJiedsy pLLna 009T+9
%y €9  T9'¢SET 00" 00" 6ETLVE‘T 00Z‘€ 00/‘€ J91eMWI01S 90ETHI
%2°87  LS°8TS'T 00" 00" €565 vIT'? VIT Z JOMIS YOETH9
%L°92  TLTLSLE 00" 00" 82 /9E‘T SZT*S STT*S J91eM £0£TH9
%2 €TT T9°0S6°C- 00" 05°885‘2 T9°€£2°ST €872t €8¢‘ee Seo Z0ETv9
%°S8 00" €L¥°€T 00" 0T TEL‘O 00" /T¥ 28 06856 068°S6 51432313 TOETV9
%6°08 0059/ 00" 00" 00°0vZ‘€ S00‘ Y S00‘ Y dmdLd BuL|2A>9¥/P1SBM PLLOS 00/0%9
%3°€07 S8 V/9- 00" 6 0¢ S8 VeE‘T 0S9 059 quswdLnb3 snosue| [33SLW 00/ZE9
%S vy 057 SOE 00" 0§ bET 0S " v 0SS 055 soL|ddns A1a4es 00£Z€9
%9°¥S  €0°89 00" 00" /618 0ST 0ST S1UBWNJIISUT ® S|00L Z060E9
%.°99  8/'¥69°€ 00" 0/°96T 226852 ¥80‘TT ¥80‘TT LetJoituer/-juLen buLp|Lng 00909
%0 00°0£8 00" 00" 00" 0£8 0£8 S9dUdJR4UOD/BuLuLedl 00T0Z9
%0°00T 85 Ev8- 00" 9676/ 85 €V8 0 0 ddUBJNSUI [BIUSA ZOESTY
%0°00T 29°06¢°CT- 00" 0S°89T‘T 29°062°CT 0 0 ddUBJNSUI Y1 [BOH TOESTI
%0°00T €/°TI8'¥- 00" 02 TO¥ €L°TI8'Y 0 0 JuswRJ 113y 00ZST9
%0°00T T/ ¢6E°S- 00" YT 25¥ TZ 26€°S 0 0 v2Id4 00TST9
%0 00" 0T ‘92 00" 00" 00" ¥0T ‘92 ¥0T ‘92 sabuLdd 000ST9
%0°00T 87 ¢be‘S- 00" €€7STT'T 82°2vZ‘8 0 0 Aed uoLiedeA 00STT9
%8 TET 0T ¥be'T- 00" e 0T 9ST'S 216'¢€ 216 € sobem swil-1Jed 0080T9
%€ 6. 89 ¢el‘ST 00" €5°8T8 Y ZE S0V 09 8¢T 9L 8¢T‘9L saLJde|es Je|nbay 00TOT9
%0°T 067 €65~ 00" ST T- 0T"9- 009- 009- SIUBWRSINQWLIY JOY10 00SE0S
%0°00T /S EVT 00" ST'€ LS EVT- 0 0 SuoLSSLuWWOD B s394 00T00S

%0°06 8€ TLE'TS 00" 62°929°0¥% 297616 ‘¥9¥ 162919 66.°L6Y ysJauided A3runwwod AdedqLl TvioL

%0°98 PE €92'T 00" 00°0¢¢ 99°9€// 000‘6 0 uoLyebL[qo/SIdeJdIU0D J3YI0 006659
%L°TS 82°Sv0‘¢ 00" SS°SY 2/.°8S¢‘¢e 0€‘9 18°C saL|ddns 351440 00T0E9
%0"00T 00°S- 00" 00° 00°S 0 0 siLwaad BuLdded 009029
%0 00T 00 ¥9¢- 00" 00°CET 00°19¢ 0 0 JuswasJnquLay abea| LW 002029
%Y SS 8V ¥86 T 00" 00°66¢ 25°59v°¢ 0sv'v osv'‘v S®dUudJajuod/buLuledl 00T0Z9
%0°00T 04°90T- 00" 0L°6 04790T 0 0 9JUBJNSUT 9417 00¥ST9
%0°00T 9/°8T6°S- 00" ¢0°T9S 9/°816°S 0 0 9JoueJnsur |eiuad ¢0esT9
%0"00T ¥6°€EV‘S/- 00" ¥9° /ST . Y6 €€V S. 0 0 oduednsur yi|eosaH TOESTI
%0 00T 92°¥92°12- 00" 90" ¥18‘T 9/°¥9/°1¢ 0 0 1uswWaJ L1934 00ZST9

10D/3sn 135and S3AONVIGWNDONT vNnLdov dliw IVNLOV dlA 135and dOodddv pund |eJauad 00T

12d 319VIIVAV d3SIAIY TVNIDIHO -d0d4 SLINNODDV
TT TZ0¢ o4

130d3d 139dNg 31va-OL1-dV3IA

uojejddy jo Ayo




pngpaAkLb :aI wedboud

TdpJaemp3 1J9asn
v abed €T:9T T20Z/S0/2T :poieJauab 1Jodoy
Z0°"T9T €06 00" 0£°05G‘€S¢€ 86°680°T00 ‘Y 1S2'v06‘Y GEG'SEL' Y SASNIAX3 VLOL
96°€12°0T 00" 08°696 ‘€~ 96°6V66E£C‘T- 9£2°622'T- 9€C¢°'TLT'T- S3NNIATY TVIO0L

%L"SL 86" VL€ €T6 00" 0§ ¥8S ‘6¥¢€ 20°0VT‘T192°C SIS ‘P29°€ 662 %98 ‘¢ pund |eJausd V1Ol

%8 €9 L6°VTL /0T 00" /9" 0TT ‘8T €0°8%S ‘68T €92'262 €92°€6¢ S9ILAJDS HJOMISN AdeUqLT TVIOL
%0 T8T 6T Ty9‘€E- 00" 0€°T¥8"S 6T 6T 8 86V v 867V uoLl1LSLhbdy auem1]0S (00ST89
%0"00T ¥E€ ¥0€‘v- 00" 00292t Y€ Y0OE‘ Y 0 0 uoL3ebL[qo/SIdeJIUOD JBYIO 006659
%006 €1 28Yv‘8 00" 62°9.. /8°8¥0°9/ TES‘P8 TES‘¥8 JuLew % sJleddy dinba 008TH9
%0°9¢ TZ°09Z°€S 00" 00°0S€‘€ 6/°6T. ST 086°TZ 086°29 1uswdLnb3 snosue||3JSLW 00/2€9
%" VT 8€°98¢2°T 00" v 9¢ 79°€T¢ 00S‘T 00S‘T saL|ddns 351440 00T0E9
%0 " 00°0¥2‘C 00" 00° 00° ovL‘e ovL‘z s@dudJajuod/buLuLedl O00T0Z9
%0 00T 0S°S9- 00" 00° 06799 0 0 9JueJnsur 94 L1 00¥ST9
%0 00T 6L7€lv- 00" 66°6T (VAR X4 0 0 9duUeJNSUI |eauad ¢0£ST9
%0°00T 8¥"T6Z‘9- 00" LV 8.2 8¥ 1629 0 0 9dueJdnsur Yi|esH TOESTI
%0 00T 66°€26°V- 00" 02°6SC 66°€/6 1V 0 0 1usWaJ L1934 00ZST9
%0°00T 00" +8S°‘S- 00" €1798¢ 00°¥8S°S 0 0 VOI4 00TST9
%0 ° 00" €6T €Y 00" 00" 00" €6T €Y €6T €Y sabuLad 000ST9
%0°00T LE£°T1S8°€- 00" 00° /€°TS8°€ 0 0 Aed uoLiedeA Q0STT9
%S T9 No.vmm”ﬁv 00" 00°0¥8°€ wm.wmmnmw HNMHNOH HNMHNOﬁ saLJe|es Je| nbay Q0TOT9
%YV LC TL SEV €T~ 00° G/ 8€E8- 62 1¥90° G- 00S "ST- 00S"8T- sluswasJdnquiay J3Yyio 00SE€0S

S©D LAJIS M}JOMION

%078  L2°985°€9¢ 00" €2°60€°0¢T €L°€0V 60T  066°C2LY'T  SYL'PSP'T uswabeuew s|eldaiew AJedqLl vLOL

%€°€6  00°00S ‘¥ 00° 00" 00°8¥2 29 8¥2°/9 8v¢‘/9 uoL1eb1|qo/s1ded1uod JaYylo 006659
%€°08  9970ST‘SZT 00" §57299°29 YETQELITTS 688°9€9 79 °26S S|eLJalen AdedqLl B $3008 00STE9
%S*LS  76°T186°CT 00° 0" ¥8T ‘T 80°0%S ‘LT 225°0¢ 225 0¢g saLlddns 831440 00T0£9
%9°S¢  197€L¥‘T 00° 00" €€°048 vee‘E vee‘e S9duaJdjuod/buLuLedl 00T0Z9
%0"00T 05798~ 00" 05°6 05798 0 0 @dUBJNSUT 9 L7 00¥ST9
%0°00T 20" 06€‘9- 00° ¢0°TZ29 207 06€°9 0 0 9JUBJNSUT [BlUSA CZ0ESTI9
%0°00T mc.omo”mml 00" Om.wwﬁnm m@.@mo”mm 0 0 9dUeJdnsuIr Yi|esH TOESTY
%0°00T ¥8 9¥T GC- 00° SETCIT ¢ Y8 9¥T S¢ 0 0 JusweJ L1y 00¢ST9
%07 00T €6°25v‘8Z- 00° Ly 96€£°T €6°257°8¢ 0 0 VvOI4d 00TST9
%0 " 00°0SZ‘T9T 00° 00° 00° 0SZ‘T9T 0SZ‘T9T sebuLJd 000ST9
%0°00T 82°9€/°Z¢- 00° 6L vv0‘€ 87-9€L¢¢E 0 0 Aed uoLiedeA 00STI9
%0 00T +T 0LE°T- 00° 964976 YT 0L£°T 0 0 Aed >DLS 004TT9
%9°88  S0"€00‘8 00° 90°829°S S6°%92°29 89¢2°0L 892°0L sobem swLl-31Jed 008019
%0°08 22586 v0T 00" ¥8 v/19°S¢ 827 €0S 6TV 687 ¥2S 68Y‘¥es soLJe|es Je|lnbay O0TOT9
%L ¥9T 60 TSP €T 00" $9°80C°T- 60" TSV vE- 000°TZ- 0 siuswasJnquiay J3Yylo 00S€0S

10D/3sn 135and S3AONVIGWNDONT avNLOV dli avNLOV dlA 135ang dOodddv pund4 |eJauad 00T

12d 319VIIVAV Q3STIAIY TVNIDIHO - 404 S.INNODDV

TT TZ0¢ o4

130d3d 139dNg 31va-OL1-dV3IA

uojejddy jo Ayo




pngpakLb :aI wedboud
TypJemp3 1a9sn
m obed €T:9T TZ0Z/S0/ZT :pd31edausb 1uoday

#x SPJEMPI 7 149¢0¥ AQ PIIBJDUDD - 1¥0dIY 40 ANT 4+

%L'SL 86 VLEET6 00" 0S"¥8S‘6¥vE 20°0VT‘T92'C  STS‘PL9°E  662°v9S‘€ IVLOL ANVYD

10D/3sn 135and S3AONVIGWNDONT vNnLdov dliw IVNLOV dlA 135and dOdddVv

12d 319VIIVAV d3SIAIY TVNIDIHO

TIT TcZ0¢ ¥od

130d3d 139dNg 31va-OL1-dV3IA

uonnjos dis Jajky e > o h._WrnUﬂ"
siun .uu.... = NWWW uoja|ddy jo A)H
. Q =



CITY OF APPLETON 2022 BUDGET

LIBRARY

Library Director: Colleen T. Rortvedt

Assistant Library Director: Tasha M. Saecker

Library.xls Page 255 9/29/2021




CITY OF APPLETON 2022 BUDGET
LIBRARY

MISSION STATEMENT

Learn, know, gather and grow - your center of community life.

DISCUSSION OF SIGNIFICANT 2021 EVENTS

Maintain high quality library services

- 2021 was impacted by the pandemic resulting in redesigning library service in methods that are safe and slowly
restoring services. By the start of summer, nearly all library services have been restored.

- Served as a vaccination site during the summer of 2021 focusing on vaccinating youth.

- Eliminated overdue fines and cleared patron accounts of existing fines for materials that have been returned.

Summer Reading Program

- Offered for all ages utilizing online and in person options; 1,251 children, 200 teens, and 495 adults participated.
- Summer programming was initially planned outdoors and as COVID and vaccination rates improved indoor
programming resumed.

Increase marketing and advocacy, fund development, technology for efficiency, staffing levels and training, library
environment and neighborhood
- Grants obtained include:
- Small Business — Big Impact grant, an initiative to support business startup, retention, and expansion for
people of color and immigrants, was launched with grant funding from the American Library Association for
2020/2021
- WILS Ideas to Action grant for Community Chords Project
- East Asia in Wisconsin Grant from UW Madison's Center for East Asian Studies
- READ Africa Grant from UW Madison's African Studies Program
- Implemented grant with Outagamie Waupaca Library System (OWLS) and Friends of the Appleton Public
Library (APL) to provide circulating laptops throughout the system from the WI Public Service Commission
- Friends of the APL provided $64,000 in grants
- Librarians engaged in initiatives at the State level, including serving as a mentor for Wisconsin Libraries -
Transforming Communities. APL staff were among five libraries in the country chosen to serve as coaches for
American Library Association's (ALA) ongoing Libraries Build Business initiative.

Continue to explore facility needs and options

- Selected architects Skidmore, Owings and Merrill to design library renovation/expansion and began work on design.
- Created multiple methods for public participation including working with the Mayor to establish a Library Building
Project Advisory Committee.

- Began developing plans for temporary library during construction.

- Modified building to provide safe service to the public during the pandemic.

Continue cooperation with schools and other community organizations

- Maintained and enhanced relationships with partners throughout the year finding new ways to collaborate during the
pandemic.

- As part of the Fox Cities Reads program, "George", was read and discussed throughout the community - author
presentation was virtual; Fox Cities Book Festival include in person and virtual events.

- Collaborated with 37 local educational institutions, businesses, and non-profit and civic groups. Collaborations
include English Language Learner programs, Building for Kids, ADI, Fox Valley Symphony, and Boys & Girls Club.

- Staff served on Imagine Fox Cities Leadership and Belonging Teams and hosted community conversations.

- As a United Way Agency, the library coordinates the Reach Out and Read - Fox Cities program.

Utilize volunteers more effectively

- In 2021, we have reinstituted volunteers based on how services have been evolving surrounding the pandemic
including shelving, children's program support, Reach Out and Read, obituary database entry and local history
projects, Job Connection support and Walking Books delivery service to homebound individuals.

Continuously work to improve website and online service delivery

- Expanded access to digital content, increasing titles and services offered.

- Offered programming in person and online via videoconferencing when meeting in person was not feasible.

- Implemented new app and created Book Matchmaker service.

- e-circulation increased 17% from previous year including e-books, audiobooks, videos, comics, magazines, music
and games.

Library.xls Page 256 9/29/2021




CITY OF APPLETON 2022 BUDGET
LIBRARY

MAJOR 2022 OBJECTIVES

VALUES:

STRATEGIC PILLARS:

WELCOMING - Everyone belongs here.
LITERACY - The City of Appleton is the City of literacy and learning.

ACCESS - The Library is accessible physically, culturally, and intellectually.
COMMUNITY - The Library is essential to every person and organization achieving their goals.

Other specific objectives include:
Complete the design of renovated/expanded library. Finalize and implement an interim library service model that is
responsive to community needs during the 18 month construction process.

Hub of Learning and Literacy - We support and sustain education for all ages.
Collaborative Environment - We connect with many partners to share knowledge and information.
Educate and Inspire Youth - We ensure that children and teens find a supportive place for their futures.
Creation and Innovation - We are a platform that sparks discovery, development and originality.
Engaged and Connected - We focus on how to make a difference in people’s lives.
Enriched Experiences - We provide experiences that are timely, inclusive and aligned with community interests.
Services and Programs for All - We give our community opportunities for growth, self-instruction and inquiry.

Apply Library's mission, vision, values and strategic pillars to accomplish objectives that serve our community.
APL Vision: Where potential is transformed into reality.

As a core component of public education for all, cultivate quality collections and develop and provide quality programs
for all ages, including: outreach and group visits; age-appropriate programs for various developmental stages with
inclusive programs; continue to explore ways to develop and support outreach to the community in nontraditional
locations; collaborate with schools and community organizations to provide options for different levels of engagement;
and continue efforts to extend outreach and circulation services out into the community.

Monitor continued impact and public health needs due to the pandemic. Leverage resources to support economic
recovery focusing on job loss, families struggling with educational needs, marginalized communities, individuals/
families suffering from social isolation and those who rely on the library to mitigate the impact of the digital divide.

Eliminate barriers by utilizing the State inclusive services assessment and other City, community and library initiatives
to advance equity and inclusion for library policies, collections, programs and services.

Market collections, programs and services. Continue to develop the "digital branch" and virtual services.

NOTE: This budget reflects temporary anticipated reductions in some budget lines due to service limitations
that will occur due to the library operating in a temporary library during the 18 month period of construction.

DEPARTMENT BUDGET SUMMARY

Programs Actual Budget %
Unit | Title 2019 2020 Adopted 2021 |Amended 2021 2022 Change *
Program Revenues $ 1267872 1% 1237716 [$ 1171236 [$ 1171236 1% 1.107.501 -5.44%
Program Expenses
16010 |Administration 659,324 648,023 768,274 828,774 696,009 -9.41%
16021 |Children's Services 548,499 542,351 566,305 578,557 533,616 -5.77%
16023 |Public Services 730,368 680,116 697,751 712,978 704,889 1.02%
16024 |Community Partnershipg 494,580 501,360 497,799 501,291 500,775 0.60%
16031 |Building Operations 467,278 406,380 438,898 438,898 525,935 19.83%
16032 |Materials Management 1,495,776 1,436,398 1,454,745 1,469,490 1,302,967 | -10.43%
16033 |Network Services 267,245 279,001 311,763 315,763 268,130 | -14.00%
TOTAL $ 4663070 $ 4493629[$ 4.735535[3 4845751 % 4,532,321 -4.29%
Expenses Comprised Of:
Personnel 3,296,550 3,211,801 3,393,413 3,393,413 3,334,116 -1.75%
Training & Travel 43,267 39,904 46,334 49,334 35,234 | -23.96%
Supplies & Materials 787,295 756,462 728,124 759,613 580,291 [ -20.30%
Purchased Services 533,654 480,886 563,166 638,893 578,182 2.67%
Capital Outlay 2,304 4,576 4,498 4,498 4,498 0.00%
Full Time Equivalent Staff:
Personnel allocated to programs] 46.00 45.00 | 45.00 | 45.00 | 45.00 |
* % change from prior year adopted budget
Library.xls Page 257 9/29/2021




CITY OF APPLETON 2022 BUDGET

LIBRARY
Administration Business Unit 16010

PROGRAM MISSION

To ensure delivery of library programs and services to patrons for the benefit of the community, the Administration
program plans, organizes and develops resources, and facilitates effective and responsible staff efforts.

PROGRAM NARRATIVE

Link to City Goals:

Implements Key Strategies #2: "Encourage active community participation and involvement"; #3: "Recognize and
grow everyone's talents"; #4: "Continually assess trends affecting the community and proactively respond"”; #5:
"Promote an environment that is respectful and inclusive"; #6: "Create opportunities and learn from successes and
failures"; and #7: "Communicate our success through stories and testimonials”.

Objectives:

Complete design of renovated/expanded library. Finalize and implement an interim library service model that is
responsive to community needs during the 18 month construction process.

Oversee the Library's long-range plan and ensure Library is responsive to community needs, adapting as appropriate
for the construction process and pandemic.

Work with the Outagamie Waupaca Library System in their relocation from the library building.
Share information about library programs, services and resources via effective marketing and communications.

Utilize the State of Wisconsin Inclusive Services Assessment, GARE and other community and library initiatives to
advance equity and inclusion for library policies, collections, programs and services.

Work with Friends of the Appleton Public Library to develop strong public/private partnership. Be good stewards of
grant funds.

Continue identifying ways to leverage volunteers in the provision of library services.

Major changes in Revenue, Expenditures, or Programs:

In 2021, the library eliminated overdue fines (charges for services) and developed a four year transition plan to offset
the loss of revenue. The offsetting revenue is recorded in the Materials Management budget ($25,000),

Rental of City Property is eliminated for 2022. Outagamie Waupaca Library System (OWLS) will be moving to a new
location.

The Other Contracts budget reflects a temporary reduction in the security guard contract during renovations.

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Target 2021 Projected 2021 Target 2022

Client Benefits/Impacts
Library activities, programs and services are responsive to community needs
% of surveyed patrons who rate the
library as satisfactory 97% 97% 97% 97% 97%

Strategic Outcomes
A better educated community
Collaborations with

educational institutions 233 37 200 200 200
Work Process Outputs
Grant funds awarded $ 152,126 $ 221,470 § 180,000 $ 200,000 $ 200,000
State-level meetings attended 38 55 40 40 40
Surveys conducted 1 1 1 3 1
Hours worked by library volunteers 7,437 2,002 3,000 2,500 2,500
Annual door count 408,532 105, 816 250,000 200,000 200,000

Library.xls Page 258 9/29/2021




CITY OF APPLETON 2022 BUDGET

LIBRARY
Administration Business Unit 16010
PROGRAM BUDGET SUMMARY
Actual Budget
Description 2019 2020 Adopted 2021 Amended 2021 2022

Revenues
423200 Library Grants & Aids $ 1,045947 $ 1,070,138 $ 1,091,736 $ 1,091,736 $ 1,063,001
480100 Charges for Services 44,646 14,728 30,000 30,000 -
501500 Rental of City Property 30,012 30,000 30,000 30,000 -
502000 Donations & Memorials 587 553 - - -
503500 Other Reimbursements 14,666 22,082 - - -

Total Revenue $ 1135858 $ 1137501 $ 1151736 $ 1151736 $ 1.063.001

Expenses
610100 Regular Salaries $ 394,145 §$ 430,382 $ 460,663 $ 460,663 $ 466,769
610400 Call Time Wages 45 15 - - -
610500 Overtime Wages - 48 - - -
610800 Part-Time Wages 8,446 4,599 8,790 8,790 7,500
615000 Fringes 132,534 142,050 179,508 179,508 177,689
620100 Training/Conferences 9,327 5,440 4,920 7,920 4,920
620600 Parking Permits 20,729 22,823 23,100 23,100 12,000
630100 Office Supplies 4,273 2,300 4,635 4,635 4,635
630300 Memberships & Licenses 3,065 3,393 2,200 2,200 2,200
630500 Awards & Recognition 1,157 879 850 850 850
630700 Food & Provisions 4,076 319 1,135 1,135 1,135
632001 City Copy Charges - 302 100 100 100
632002 Outside Printing 1,031 1,033 - - -
641200 Advertising 2,409 2,477 1,288 6,288 1,288
641307 Telephone 3,069 3,358 2,948 2,948 2,948
641308 Cellular Phones 1,517 615 1,600 1,600 1,600
659900 Other Contracts/Obligation 73,501 27,990 76,537 129,037 12,375

Total Expense $ 659324 $ 648023 $ 768274 $ 828774 $ 696,009

DETAILED SUMMARY OF 2022 PROPOSED EXPENDITURES > $15,000

None

Library.xls Page 259 9/29/2021




CITY OF APPLETON 2022 BUDGET

LIBRARY
Children's Services Business Unit 16021

PROGRAM MISSION

In collaboration with the community, we educate, inspire, engage, motivate and provide access to resources for all
children.

PROGRAM NARRATIVE

Link to City Goals:

Implements Key Strategies #1: "Responsibly deliver excellent services"; #2: "Encourage active community
participation and involvement"; #4: "Continually assess trends affecting the community and proactively respond"; #5:
"Promote an environment that is respectful and inclusive"; and #6: "Create opportunities and learn from successes
and failures".

Objectives:

Cultivate quality children's materials collections to support both education and recreation. Provide responsive
customer service, including reference, readers’ advisory and directional assistance. Explore staff mobility and
examine new ways to staff service desks to better serve patrons.

Develop and provide quality programs for more than 25,000 children and caregivers, including field trips and group
visits, age-appropriate programs for children birth to age 12, inclusive programs for children with sensory challenges,
specialized programs and services to minority and low income families, and reading incentive programs.

Explore ways to develop and support outreach to the community in nontraditional locations. Work directly with Hmong
and Hispanic families and coordinate with AASD Birth to 5 Programs, Outagamie County Birth to 3 Early Intervention,
Fox Valley Literacy Council and Head Start by using a referral system to link families with needed resources,
providing in-home visits to families and building towards their full use of the library and its services.

Provide specialized programs directed at families and children to include refugees, newcomers and those from
culturally diverse backgrounds, including coordination with community organizations to bring ELL book clubs, literacy
classes, and other cultural celebrations.

Major changes in Revenue, Expenditures, or Programs:

The Children’s Department continues to develop ways to provide programming and services during the building
process including planning for a temporary location. These plans include: in-person and virtual programming, the
exploration and experimentation of non-traditional and traditional outreach programming, outdoor programs and the
continuation of services such as Book Packs that grew in popularity during the pandemic.

Library.xls Page 260 9/29/2021




CITY OF APPLETON 2022 BUDGET

LIBRARY
Children's Services Business Unit 16021
PROGRAM BUDGET SUMMARY
Actual Budget
Description 2019 2020 Adopted 2021 Amended 2021 2022
Revenues
503500 Other Reimbursements 31,600 18,800 - - -
Total Revenue $ 31,600 $ 18,800 $ -3 -9 -
Expenses
610100 Regular Salaries $ 350,454 $ 361,433 $ 369,371 $ 369,371 $ 362,814
610800 Part-Time Wages 38,718 27,648 30,528 30,528 28,085
615000 Fringes 127,636 128,929 158,189 158,189 134,500
620100 Training/Conferences 3,996 5,480 4,405 4,405 4,405
630100 Office Supplies 21,003 16,460 2,812 10,979 2,812
630300 Memberships & Licenses 153 - - - -
630700 Food & Provisions 1,444 690 - 4,085 -
659900 Other Contracts/Obligation 5,095 1,711 1,000 1,000 1,000
Total Expense § 548499 § 542351 § 566,305 $ 578557 $ 533,616

DETAILED SUMMARY OF 2022 PROPOSED EXPENDITURES > $15,000

None

Library.xls Page 261 9/29/2021




CITY OF APPLETON 2022 BUDGET

LIBRARY
|Public Services Business Unit 16023

PROGRAM MISSION

Public Services is at the front-line, providing excellent customer service by helping the community use library
resources.

PROGRAM NARRATIVE

Link to City Goals:

Implements Key Strategies #1: "Responsibly deliver excellent services"; #4: "Continually assess trends affecting the
community and proactively respond”; #5: "Promote an environment that is respectful and inclusive"; and #6: "Create
opportunities and learn from successes and failures".

Objectives:

Work with patrons in support of the strategic pillars of Hub of Learning and Literacy, Engaged and Connected,
Enriched Experiences, and Services and Programs for All; work with other system libraries and state libraries in a
collaborative environment; embrace new technologies and best library practices; improve staff mobility and examine
new ways to staff service desks to better serve patrons.

Respond to reference, readers’ advisory, technological and directional questions in person, via phone, email, and
online social media and work to create consistent customer service levels at all service desks in the library; use
technology competencies for the adult service desk staff for increased consistency between desks and focused
training; provide quality service to our patrons in person, via phone and remotely.

Register new patrons and maintain a database of 75,000 users; process holds in conjunction with the Materials
Management section (approx. 145,000 items); send out overdue, billing and reserve notices; utilize the Tax Refund
Intercept Program (TRIP) and a collection agency for the collection of long overdue items and bills.

Promote and educate the public on the use of the self-check machines.

Prepare and maintain displays of new and/or popular materials. Continue to work with Materials Management and
OWLS to improve functionality of library catalog and discovery layer; oversee the inter-library loan process.

Explore ways to develop and support outreach to the community in non-traditional locations.

Major changes in Revenue, Expenditures, or Programs:

Public Services continues to develop ways to provide resources and services during the building process including
planning for a temporary location.

Library.xls Page 262 9/29/2021




CITY OF APPLETON 2022 BUDGET

LIBRARY
Public Services Business Unit 16023
PROGRAM BUDGET SUMMARY
Actual Budget
Description 2019 2020 Adopted 2021 Amended 2021 2022
Revenues
503500 Other Reimbursements $ 12,494 $ 1,814 § 400 $ 400 $ 400
Total Revenue R 12,494 9§ 1,814 9§ 400 9§ 400 § 400
Expenses
610100 Regular Salaries $ 475,860 $ 458,777 $ 455,427 $ 455,427 $ 449,189
610500 Overtime Wages 4 1 - - -
610800 Part-Time Wages 91,753 74,200 90,508 90,508 83,267
615000 Fringes 150,514 138,466 137,227 137,227 157,844
620100 Training/Conferences 2,443 2,167 2,565 2,565 2,565
630100 Office Supplies 2,960 2,243 3,500 3,500 3,500
659900 Other Contracts/Obligation 6,834 4,262 8,524 23,751 8,524
Total Expense $ 730,368 $ 680,116 $ 697,751 $ 712,978 $ 704,889

DETAILED SUMMARY OF 2022 PROPOSED EXPENDITURES > $15,000

None

Library.xls Page 263 9/29/2021




CITY OF APPLETON 2022 BUDGET
LIBRARY
Community Partnerships Business Unit 16024

PROGRAM MISSION

Community Partnerships: Engage, Educate, Entertain, Elevate.

PROGRAM NARRATIVE

Link to City Goals:

Implements Key Strategies #1: "Responsibly deliver excellent services"; #2: "Encourage active community
participation and involvement"; #4: "Continually assess trends affecting the community and proactively respond"; #5:
"Promote an environment that is respectful and inclusive"; and #6: "Create opportunities and learn from successes
and failures".

Objectives:

Connect members of the Appleton community with opportunities for growth, self-instruction, and inquiry in the library,
online, and throughout the Appleton area; provide enriched entertainment opportunities for teen and adult community
members by maintaining a broad range of materials and programs.

Provide access to local history materials, services, and programs; preserve Appleton and APL history by increasing
and improving access to digital materials.

Collaborate with partner agencies utilizing the Community Partnerships Framework to provide options for different
levels of engagement; serve on local boards and participate in various organizations to increase collaboration, build
shared capacity, and connect patrons with local resources.

Foster partnerships and celebrate our diverse community by providing lifelong learning opportunities through services
and programs for all. Develop relationships and services focused on economic development.

Work with Public Services and Children’s Services staff to bring circulation services to the community.

Major changes in Revenue, Expenditures, or Programs:

Community partnerships staff will work in partnership with other community agencies and institutions to coordinate off-
site programs and services during the building process including planning for a temporary location.

Library.xls Page 264 9/29/2021




CITY OF APPLETON 2022 BUDGET

LIBRARY
Community Partnerships Business Unit 16024
PROGRAM BUDGET SUMMARY
Actual Budget
Description 2019 2020 Adopted 2021 Amended 2021 2022
Revenues
503500 Other Reimbursements $ 17,500 $ 32,000 $ - $ - 9 -
Total Revenue R 17,500 9§ 32,000 9§ - - -
Expenses
610100 Regular Salaries $ 318,218 $ 346,580 $ 344212 $ 344212 $ 349,375
610800 Part-Time Wages 17,714 13,321 - - -
615000 Fringes 138,006 126,676 146,325 146,325 144,138
620100 Training/Conferences 4,545 3,990 4,450 4,450 4,450
630100 Office Supplies 5,010 3,149 2,812 3,304 2,812
630300 Memberships & Licenses - 74 - - -
659900 Other Contracts/Obligation 11,087 7,570 - 3,000 -
Total Expense $ 494580 $ 501360 $ 497799 $ 501,291 $ 500775

DETAILED SUMMARY OF 2022 PROPOSED EXPENDITURES > $15,000

None

Library.xls Page 265 9/29/2021




CITY OF APPLETON 2022 BUDGET
LIBRARY
Building Operations Business Unit 16031

PROGRAM MISSION

Support the community and the library's role as a hub of learning and literacy by maintaining a welcoming
environment that promotes and contributes to lifelong learning.

PROGRAM NARRATIVE

Link to City Goals:

Implements Key Strategies #1: "Responsibly deliver excellent services"; #4: "Continually assess trends affecting the
community and proactively respond”; #5: "Promote an environment that is respectful and inclusive"; and #6: "Create
opportunities and learn from successes and failures".

Objectives:
Maintain increased cleanliness, sanitization and perform light maintenance of the library building while providing
assistance to Library staff and the community.

Ensure library meeting room needs are met.

Explore new ways to support workflows and service throughout APL; proactively meet the needs of the community
through quality customer service and incorporating sustainable and cost-effective practices in our day-to-day
operations.

Facilitate the work done in the library in conjunction with the City Facilities Management Department and the
contracted cleaning service by performing basic facility and equipment maintenance and informing the appropriate
person of building needs or concerns.

Major changes in Revenue, Expenditures, or Programs:

Operations will support facility needs during the building process including preparing and moving to a temporary
location.

Library.xls Page 266 9/29/2021




CITY OF APPLETON 2022 BUDGET

LIBRARY
Building Operations Business Unit 16031
PROGRAM BUDGET SUMMARY
Actual Budget
Description 2019 2020 Adopted 2021 Amended 2021 2022

Revenues
500100 Fees & Commissions $ 1,005 $ 337 % 600 $ 600 $ 600
503500 Other Reimbursements 111 - - - -

Total Revenue $ 1,116 $ 337 $ 600 $ 600 $ 600

Expenses
610100 Regular Salaries $ 112,716 $ 77876 $ 76,128 $ 76,128 $ 77,270
610500 Overtime Wages 57 703 - - -
610800 Part-Time Wages 4,619 3,915 3,912 3,912 8,000
615000 Fringes 47,020 23,898 26,104 26,104 26,297
620100 Training/Conferences - 4 830 830 830
630100 Office Supplies 29 - - - -
630600 Building Maint./Janitorial 12,560 6,416 11,084 11,084 7,000
630902 Tools & Instruments - 14 150 150 150
632101 Uniforms - 180 - - -
632300 Safety Supplies 500 1,039 550 550 550
632700 Miscellaneous Equipment 279 238 650 650 650
640700 Solid Waste/Recycling 2,563 4,219 4,005 4,005 4,125
641300 Utilities 120,401 106,777 129,112 129,112 40,000
641600 Build Repairs & Maint 2,424 1,788 2,000 2,000 2,000
641800 Equip Repairs & Maint 160 - 400 400 400
642000 Facilities Charges 163,950 179,313 183,973 183,973 100,000
650200 Leases - - - - 258,663

Total Expense § 467278 $§ 406380 $ 438898 § 438898 $ 525935

DETAILED SUMMARY OF 2022 PROPOSED EXPENDITURES > $15,000

Leases
Temporary library facility $ 258,663
3 258,663

Library.xls Page 267 9/29/2021




CITY OF APPLETON 2022 BUDGET

LIBRARY
Materials Management Business Unit 16032

PROGRAM MISSION

To develop, organize, and maintain well-rounded collections. Collections are built in anticipation of and response to
Appleton residents' informational, educational & recreational needs.

PROGRAM NARRATIVE

Link to City Goals:

Implements Key Strategies #1: "Responsibly deliver excellent services"; #4: "Continually assess trends affecting the
community and proactively respond"; and #6: "Create opportunities and learn from successes and failures".

Objectives:

Materials Management creates entries and database records for approximately 25,000 new titles in the online catalog.
We process 27,500 items annually, including labels, RFID tags and jacket protectors. We receive 1,800 newspapers,
periodicals and standing order subscriptions and process over 5,000 magazine issues for circulation and storage.

Other specific objectives include:

Collect and route approximately 140,000 items to fill reserves at other OWLSnet libraries; accurately check-in, sort
and re-shelve over a million returned materials using the automated materials handling system; expand staff
participation in displays.

Continue to enhance and evaluate the "digital branch" with access to e-courses for lifelong learning and mobile
content.

Implement collection development procedures focused on high-interest, popular materials, including utilizing collection
management data tools.

Actively work with OWLSnet on implementation of the integrated library system, as well as ways to reduce barriers to

Major changes in Revenue, Expenditures, or Programs:

Develop and implement plan for relocation of physical collection (approximately 245,000 items) to interim service
and/or storage location(s) in advance of building construction project.

Materials Management continues to develop ways to provide access to collections during the building process
including planning for a temporary location.

The Library Materials and Supplies budgets reflect temporary reductions due to limitations that will occur because of
the library operating in a temporary location during the 18 month period of construction.

Other Reimbursements represents amounts that are received from patrons for lost materials. These amounts have
not been budgeted for in the past. The revenue represents the offset to revenues lost due to the elimination of fines
on overdue materials.

Library.xls Page 268 9/29/2021




CITY OF APPLETON 2022 BUDGET

LIBRARY
Materials Management Business Unit 16032
PROGRAM BUDGET SUMMARY
Actual Budget
Description 2019 2020 Adopted 2021 Amended 2021 2022
Revenues
503500 Other Reimbursements $ 46,356 $ 41692 $ - 9 - 9 25,000
Total Revenue R 46,356 § 41,692 - - 25,000
Expenses
610100 Regular Salaries $ 506,768 $ 523,499 $ 524,489 $ 524,489 $ 513,223
610500 Overtime Wages 2 - - - -
610800 Part-Time Wages 98,336 63,614 70,268 70,268 64,647
615000 Fringes 149,405 139,627 161,250 161,250 156,650
620100 Training/Conferences 1,029 - 3,324 3,324 3,324
630100 Office Supplies 31,152 21,602 30,522 30,522 24,417
631500 Books & Library Materials 641,651 623,914 597,644 612,389 475,000
659900 Other Contracts/Obligation 67,433 64,142 67,248 67,248 65,706
Total Expense § 1495776 $ 1436398 $ 1454745 § 1469490 $ 1,302,967
DETAILED SUMMARY OF 2022 PROPOSED EXPENDITURES > $15,000
Office Supplies
General office supplies $ 3,128 Books & Library Materials
Material processing supplies (book Children's materials $ 115,603
jackets, barcodes, cassette cases, Adult materials 331,194
book labels, CD cases, etc.) 16,084 Digital content consortia 28,203
RFID supplies 5,205 $ 475.000
$ 24 417 -
Other Contracts/Obligations
OWLSnet contract $ 61,206
Collection agency 4,500
$ 65,706

Library.xls Page 269 9/29/2021




CITY OF APPLETON 2022 BUDGET

LIBRARY
Network Services Business Unit 16033

PROGRAM MISSION

Providing high-quality technology, in the most cost-effective manner, to best serve our community.

PROGRAM NARRATIVE

Link to City Goals:

Implements Key Strategies #1: "Responsibly deliver excellent services"; #4: "Continually assess trends affecting the
community and proactively respond”; and #6: "Create opportunities and learn from successes and failures".

Objectives:

Develop multi-year schedule of technology projects and replacements; replace 20% of staff and public computing
devices annually to maintain usability and update the network hardware and software to ensure responsiveness to
patron and staff need; replace aging network switches to increase uptime and reliability; maintain warranties on
production servers and utilize the Federal government program e-rate to attain the best rates and reimbursements for
eligible items.

Maintain online public access catalogs, public workstations, AV equipment, digital signage, RFID and automated

materials handling equipment; filter and protect internet connections to keep library staff and public technology
reasonably safe.

Support the video security system; maintain reliable data communication between the library's and OWLS’ networks.

Work to improve staff mobile access to Library systems to enable them to move about the building assisting patrons
and provide remote access for laptops as appropriate.

Assist staff in technical aspects of providing electronic services to the public and support staff computer users; seek
out and evaluate technologies to provide increased efficiencies for staff and operations; partner with OWLS to reduce
costs and increase efficiencies when providing services to both the public and staff.

Major changes in Revenue, Expenditures, or Programs:

Network Services continues to develop ways to provide access to technology during the building process including
planning and implementing in a temporary location.

The Equipment Repairs and Maintenance and Miscellaneous Equipment budgets reflect temporary reductions due to
limitations that will occur while the library operates in a temporary location during the 18 month construction period.
Fewer PCs will be replaced during this time and some service contracts will be terminated.

Library.xls Page 270 9/29/2021




CITY OF APPLETON 2022 BUDGET

LIBRARY
Network Services Business Unit 16033
PROGRAM BUDGET SUMMARY
Actual Budget
Description 2019 2020 Adopted 2021 Amended 2021 2022
Revenues
503500 Other Reimbursements $ 22,948 $ 5572 $ 18,500 $ 18,500 $ 18,500
Total Revenue § 22048 § 5572 § 18500 $ 18500 $ 18,500
Expenses
610100 Regular Salaries $ 95,343 $ 96,849 $ 107,321 $ 107,321 $ 104,234
610500 Overtime 225 46 - - -
615000 Fringes 38,011 28,650 43,193 43,193 22,625
620100 Training/Conferences 1,198 - 2,740 2,740 2,740
630100 Office Supplies 82 15 1,500 1,500 1,500
632700 Miscellaneous Equipment 56,870 72,201 67,980 71,980 52,980
641800 Equip Repairs & Maint 73,211 76,664 84,531 84,531 79,553
681500 Software Acquisition 2,305 4,576 4,498 4,498 4,498
Total Expense $ 267245 $ 279001 $ 311763 § 315763 $ 268,130

Note: The costs above reflect the needs while located in the temporary space during renovations.

DETAILED SUMMARY OF 2022 PROPOSED EXPENDITURES > $15.000

Miscellaneous Equipment

Computer replacements $ 20,000

Network hardware, wiring, etc. 18,000

Network attached storage 14,980
$ 52,980

Equipment Repairs and Maintenance

Photocopier lease & maintenance $ 11,840

Automated material handling equipment 20,000

Self checks and security gate contract 18,927

Software license and maintenance fees 25,199

Other equipment repairs and

maintenance 3,587
$ 79,553

Library.xls Page 271 9/29/2021




CITY OF APPLETON 2022 BUDGET

LIBRARY
2019 2020 2021 2021 2021 2022
ACTUAL ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL ORIGBUD REVISED BUD BUDGET
Program Revenues
423200 Library Grants & Aids 1,045,947 1,070,138 - 1,091,736 1,091,736 1,063,001
480100 General Charges for Service 44,646 14,728 1,296 30,000 30,000 -
500100 Fees & Commissions 1,005 337 - - - 600
501500 Rental of City Property 30,013 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 -
502000 Donations & Memorials 587 553 148 - - -
503500 Other Reimbursements 145,674 121,960 64,958 19,500 19,500 43,900
TOTAL PROGRAM REVENUES 1,267,872 1,237,716 96,402 1,171,236 1,171,236 1,107,501
Personnel
610100 Regular Salaries 2,026,765 2,104,094 678,950 2,337,611 2,337,611 2,322,874
610400 Call Time Wages 45 15 600 - - -
610500 Overtime Wages 284 798 - - - -
610800 Part-Time Wages 259,586 187,297 55,869 204,006 204,006 191,499
611400 Sick Pay 5,064 4,338 1,833 - - -
611500 Vacation Pay 221,679 186,964 30,414 - - -
615000 Fringes 783,127 728,295 247,811 851,796 851,796 819,743
TOTAL PERSONNEL 3,296,550 3,211,801 1,015,477 3,393,413 3,393,413 3,334,116
Training~Travel
620100 Training/Conferences 22,538 17,081 2,537 23,234 26,234 23,234
620600 Parking Permits 20,729 22,823 23,100 23,100 23,100 12,000
TOTAL TRAINING / TRAVEL 43,267 39,904 25,637 46,334 49,334 35,234
Supplies
630100 Office Supplies 64,508 45,770 9,744 45,781 54,440 39,676
630300 Memberships & Licenses 3,218 3,467 1,066 2,200 2,200 2,200
630500 Awards & Recognition 1,157 879 168 850 850 850
630600 Building Maint./Janitorial 12,560 6,416 3,481 11,084 11,084 7,000
630700 Food & Provisions 5,520 1,009 230 1,135 5,220 1,135
630902 Tools & Instruments - 14 82 150 150 150
631500 Books & Library Materials 641,651 623,914 204,953 597,644 612,389 475,000
632001 City Copy Charges - 302 - - - 100
632002 Outside Printing 1,031 1,033 2,059 100 100 -
632101 Uniforms - 180 - - - -
632300 Safety Supplies 500 1,039 110 550 550 550
632700 Miscellaneous Equipment 57,150 72,439 753 68,630 72,630 53,630
TOTAL SUPPLIES 787,295 756,462 222,646 728,124 759,613 580,291
Purchased Services
640700 Solid Waste/Recycling Pickup 2,563 4,219 1,296 4,005 4,005 4,125
641200 Advertising 2,409 2,477 4,151 1,288 6,288 1,288
641301 Electric 88,808 83,151 24,010 95,890 95,890 24,778
641302 Gas 22,352 16,437 10,244 22,283 22,283 4,283
641303 Water 4,363 2,895 384 5,125 5,125 5,125
641304 Sewer 1,803 1,144 134 2,114 2,114 2,114
641306 Stormwater 3,075 3,150 811 3,700 3,700 3,700
641307 Telephone 3,069 3,358 1,125 2,948 2,948 2,948
641308 Cellular Phones 1,517 615 285 1,600 1,600 1,600
641600 Build Repairs & Maint 2,424 1,788 - 2,000 2,000 2,000
641800 Equip Repairs & Maint 73,371 76,664 51,658 84,931 84,931 79,953
642000 Facilities Charges 163,950 179,313 23,395 183,973 183,973 100,000
650200 Leases - - - - - 258,663
659900 Other Contracts/Obligation 163,950 105,675 90,299 153,309 224,036 87,605
TOTAL PURCHASED SVCS 533,654 480,886 207,792 563,166 638,893 578,182
Capital Outlay
681500 Software Acquisition 2,304 4,576 - 4,498 4,498 4,498
TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 2,304 4,576 - 4,498 4,498 4,498
TOTAL EXPENSE 4,663,070 4,493,629 1,471,552 4,735,535 4,845,751 4,532,321

2022 Library Page 272 9/29/2021



CITY OF APPLETON 2022 BUDGET

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Library Grants Business Unit 2550

PROGRAM MISSION

This program accounts for the receipt of Library grants and other revenues, along with the corresponding program
expenditures.

PROGRAM NARRATIVE

Link to Strategy:

Implements Key Strategy #4: "Continually assess trends affecting the community and proactively respond”.

Objectives:

Reach Out and Read (ROR) is a research-based and evidence-based national program that puts books in the hands of
families and children through their pediatricians. The doctors use the books to help facilitate developmental screenings
and also to provide families information on how important it is to read to their small children. The books are provided to
children aged birth to five and the program in the Fox Cities includes Appleton, Neenah, Menasha and the surrounding
region.

The library is a United Way Agency for the ROR program, which has been supported by grants from the United Way
since its inception in 2016. A strategic planning process involving the participating clinics and a professional facilitator
was completed in 2017 to establish an ongoing funding model for the program. The United Way will continue to support
ROR overall but the various clinics have begun to reimburse the program for the books they distribute to patients. The
physician liaison working for this program continues to coordinate the selection and purchase of all books and all clinics
sign an MOU committing to fund the books they distribute in well child visits.

Major changes in Revenue, Expenditures, or Programs:
No major changes.

DEPARTMENT BUDGET SUMMARY

Programs Actual Budget %

Unit | Title 2019 2020 | Adopted 2021 |Amended 2021 2022 Change *
Program Revenues 3 77626 [$ 50670 [$ 112,396 [$ 12,396 [ $ 12,396 0.00%
Program Expenses b 96,911 1% 13,801 133,138 [ $ 34,769 [ $ 26,411 -5.05%

Expenses Comprised Of:

Personnel 25,279 39,098 39,048 39,048 39,771 1.85%
Training & Travel 373 49 2,350 2,350 2,350 0.00%
Supplies & Materials 64,643 52,420 78,140 78,140 77,690 -0.58%
Purchased Services 6,616 22,234 13,600 15,231 6,600 -51.47%
Full Time Equivalent Staff:

Personnel allocated to programs] 0.50 | 0.50 | 0.50 | 0.50 | 0.50 |

Library Grants.xlIsx Page 274 9/29/2021




CITY OF APPLETON 2022 BUDGET
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Library Grants Business Unit 2550

PROGRAM BUDGET SUMMARY

Actual Budget
Description 2019 2020 Adopted 2021 Amended 2021 2022
Revenues
503500 Other Reimbursements $ 77,626 $ 150,670 $ 112,396 $ 112,396 $ 112,396
Total Revenue % 77626 § 150,670 § 112,396 § 112,396 § 112,396
Expenses
610100 Regular Salaries $ 22,632 §$ 24213 § 25,250 $ 25,250 $ 25,881
610800 Part Time - 3,581 - - -
615000 Fringes 2,647 11,304 13,798 13,798 13,890
620100 Training/Conferences 373 49 2,350 2,350 2,350
630100 Office Supplies 3,155 654 3,950 3,950 3,500
631500 Books & Library Materials 61,488 51,766 74,190 74,190 74,190
640400 Consulting Services 3,810 3,999 3,600 3,600 3,600
641200 Advertising 2,806 1,885 10,000 10,000 3,000
659900 Other Contracts - 16,350 - 1,631 -
Total Expense % 96,911 § 113,801 § 133,138 § 134,769 § 126,411

DETAILED SUMMARY OF 2022 PROPOSED EXPENDITURES > $15,000

Books & Library Materials

Books for well-child visits $ 74,190
$ 74,190

Library Grants.xlsx Page 275 9/29/2021




CITY OF APPLETON 2022 BUDGET

LIBRARY GRANTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)

2019 2020 2021 2021 2022
[Revenues | Actual Actual Budget Projected Budget
Other Reimbursements 77,626 $ 150,670 $ 112,396 $ 112,396 $ 112,396

Total Revenues 77,626 150,670 112,396 112,396 112,396
|Expenses |
Program Costs 96,911 113,801 133,138 134,769 126,411

Total Expenses 96,911 113,801 133,138 134,769 126,411
[Other Financing Sources (Uses) |
Transfer In - General Fund - - - - -

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - - - - -
Revenues over (under)

Expenses (19,285) 36,869 (20,742) (22,373) (14,015)
Fund Balance - Beginning 79,139 59,854 96,723 96,723 74,350
Fund Balance - Ending 59,854 $ 96,723 $ 75,981 $ 74,350 $ 60,335
Library Grants.xIsx Page 276 9/29/2021



CITY OF APPLETON 2022 BUDGET CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM
PROJECT REQUEST

IDENTIFICATION

Project Title:  Library

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Justification:
Studies done over the past ten years have concluded that the library needs more space to accommodate large
meetings, more efficient circulation practices and flexible space. Considering the findings of these studies and
community input already received, rebuilding or renovating the library at its current location was determined to be the
best option. The lot at 225 N. Oneida Street is currently owned and managed by the City of Appleton. Remaining at this
location will simplify, or eliminate altogether, multi-party agreements and site acquisition issues, which will remove key
barriers to the project and will likely yield cost savings as well. A project at the current site supports stewardship of
existing investments in parking and other public infrastructure, including an opportunity to retain accessible parking on-
site and to maximize use of the 1200-stall Yellow Ramp. A reconstruction or renovation of the existing site will put the
library at the center of neighborhood revitalization efforts, encouraging other businesses, organizations and
homeowners to move into an area ripe for reactivation.

The planning process will employ the following principles:

» Treat APL as the focal point in an overall neighborhood revitalization effort

« Create opportunities for public input and collaboration at each step of the process

« Steward existing community investments wherever possible — this includes considerations into the full or partial reuse
of  the current building and maximizing use of the 1200-stall Yellow Ramp

* Ensure the project incorporates accessible parking for those with mobility needs

* Design a project that minimizes environmental impact; ideally lowering operating expenses while doing so

* Deliver a cost-effective plan, maximizing taxpayer value while meeting community needs

» Use as much information from previous studies, design work, and community input as possible

In March, 2021, the architectural firm of Skidmore, Owings and Merrill (SOM) was hired to lead the library design
process. In conjunction with City staff, SOM performed a building condition assessment which concluded that the
building structure is solid and will integrate well into a new design. Concurrently, meetings with library staff are ongoing
to determine programatic and space needs which will serve as the basis for the design concepts to ensure the design
will support the necessary functions of the library. Additonally, public input sessions are being planned as well as
finalizing the structure and membership of a Library Building Project Advisory Committee to encourage and promote
community engagement in the project.

The amounts noted below are estimates of construction costs in 2022 and 2023 of the total $26.4 million project.

Discussion of operating cost impact:

A larger facility may increase maintenance and utility expenses, but those will be at least partially offset by more efficient
mechanical systems, lighting, and general building design. The net impact on operating expenses is, therefore, not
presently quantifiable.

DEPARTMENT COST SUMMARY

DEPARTMENT PHASE 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 Total
PRFMD Design - - - - -8 -

Library reconstruction /

Renovation 10,000,000 13,542,500 - - - $ 23,542,500
Total - Facilities Capital Projects _§$ 10,000,000 $ 13,542,500 § - 3 -3 - $ 23,542,500

COST ANALYSIS
Estimated Cash Flows

Components 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 Total
Planning - - - - -1$ -
Construction 10,000,000 13,542,500 - - - | $ 23,542,500
Other - - - - -1 $ -
Total $ 10,000,000 [$ 13,542,500 [ § -1$ -19$ - 1 $ 23,542 500
Operating Cost Impact NQ * NQ * NQ * NQ * NQ * NQ *

* N/Q = Not Quantifiable

2022 Library CIP.xlsx Page 638 9/30/2021




APPLETON PUBLIC LIBRARY

225 North Oneida Street

Appleton, WI 54911-4780

(920) 832-6170 | FAX: (920) 832-6182

TO: APPLETON PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES

FROM: COLLEEN RORTVEDT, DIRECTOR — APPLETON PUBLIC LIBRARY
DATE: DECEMBER 9, 2021

RE: LIBRARY TABLE OF ORGANIZATION CHANGE REQUEST

In February of 2020 the library created the role of Safety Supervisor. As a new role we had this position
reporting to the Assistant Director. During this time we have found significant synergies with the facility
safety roles that the Business Manager oversees as the lead contact with the City Safety Team.
Therefore, we recommend moving the Safety Supervisor to report to the Business Manager.

This TO change is budget neutral.



2022 Services Agreement
Outagamie Waupaca Library System
Appleton Public Library

Article I: General

The Outagamie Waupaca Library System Board and the Board of the Appleton Public Library do
hereby enter into this agreement, for the purpose of defining the mutually agreed upon fees and
services between the Appleton Public Library and the Outagamie Waupaca Library System. This
agreement shall become effective January 1, 2022 or upon the approval by both Boards and shall
work in concert with the approved resource library contract.

Article II: Definitions
For the purposes of this agreement:

(1) Outagamie Waupaca Library System Board is the body established by the Boards of
Supervisors of Outagamie County and Waupaca County in accordance with Section 43.19
of the Wisconsin Statutes.

(2) Outagamie Waupaca Library System, hereinafter known as OWLS, is the agency
established under Section 43.15 of the Wisconsin Statutes and operating under the System
Board to provide and administer the public library system for Outagamie and Waupaca
Counties.

(3) The Appleton Public Library Board is the body, established under the provisions of Section
43.54 of the Wisconsin Statutes, that administers the Appleton Public Library.

(4) The Appleton Public Library, also known as APL, is the agency established under Section
43.52 of the Wisconsin Statutes by the City of Appleton to provide municipal public library
service.

(5) OWLSnet is a program established by OWLS to provide a shared, integrated library
automation system to OWLS and Nicolet Federated Library System member libraries.

Article III: Appleton Public Library Responsibilities
It is mutually agreed that the Appleton Public Library shall:

(1) Select and add up to $21,000 worth of materials, paid for by OWLS, to the collection to
enhance the Resource Library's ability to serve as a resource for the entire system and
OWLSnet.

(2) Contribute at least $5,000 toward the purchase of digital content through the Overdrive
Advantage program. This can be modified by mutual agreement should there be budgetary
constraints.

Page 1 of 3



)
(4)

©)

Provide $25,000 in cataloging services to OWLSnet.

Allow OWLS to use library meeting spaces whenever available, for staff, board, or other
library-related meetings. OWLS will have priority access to meeting space after APL
programs and events.

Promote innovation and best practices in library service among other OWLS libraries by
sharing staff expertise and new knowledge gained through OWLS-funded continuing
education.

(6) Develop a mutually agreed upon transition plan to address staff, property and network

transitions to ensure OWLS is able to maintain network connectivity and APL’s building
project is not delayed

Article IV: OWLS Responsibilities
It is mutually agreed that OWLS shall:

(1)

)

)

(4)

)
(6)

Fund the acquisition of up to $21,000 worth of materials to be added to APL's collection to
enhance APL's ability to serve as a resource for the entire system and OWLSnet.

Contribute at least $5,000 toward the purchase of digital content through the Overdrive
Advantage program. This can be modified by mutual agreement should there be budgetary
constraints.

Provide a credit of $25,000 toward APL’s OWLSnet fee for cataloging services provided.

Provide APL with up to $6,000 of printing and photocopying services. Additional printing
or photocopying will be billed at OWLS prevailing rates.

Provide Appleton Public Library staff with at least $3,500 in continuing education funds.
Develop a mutually agreed upon transition plan to address staff, property and network

transitions to ensure OWLS is able to maintain network connectivity and APL’s building
project is not delayed.

Article V: Mutual Understandings

It is mutually understood and agreed that:

(1)

Implementation of this agreement is consistent with the provisions of Wisconsin
law. Should any part of this agreement become inconsistent with any state law, the State of
Wisconsin law shall take precedence over this agreement.

Page 2 of 3



(2) This contract shall continue in force through December 31, 2022. In the event that a new
contract has not been signed by December 31, 2022, the term of the previous agreement
shall be automatically extended through April 30, 2023 or until an agreement is approved
by both Boards.

(3) This contract may be amended at any time as is mutually agreeable to both parties.

For the Appleton Public Library:

(President) (Date)

For the Outagamie Waupaca Counties
Federated Library System:

(President) (Date)

Page 3 of 3



City
Of

0604 APPLETON PUBLIC LIBRARY

225 North Oneida Street
Appleton, WI 54911-4780
(920) 832-6170 | FAX: (920) 832-6182

TO: Members of the Appleton Public Library Board of Trustees
Members of the City of Appleton Common Council

FROM: Dean Gazza, Director of Parks Recreation and Facilities Management
Colleen Rortvedst, Library Director

DATE: December 8, 2021

RE: November Library Building Project Update

City staff continue to work with architects Skidmore, Owings and Merrill (SOM) on the library project. The following
progress has been made in the past month:

Design, Community Engagement and Communication

a. We are currently in the design development phase.

b. Schedules are being finalized for the next phase including more detailed interior design and work on
furnishings and finishes. Staff workshops an community updates are being scheduled for early 2022
including a Library Building Project Advisory Committee meeting.

c. The architects continue to refine the design based on all the feedback they receive.

d. Community engagement opportunities during construction are being planned.

Additional Site Assessment Updates

We are finalizing soil testing. Recent testing concentrated on an area that may house an underground stormwater
management trap. Since there is minimal green space or space for a retention pond a trap would be most suitable.
Additional soil testing was completed to determine design for foundation and footings. Recent testing was better than
anticipated which will allow us to use standard spread footings.

Parking
A report of the parking analysis is being finalized by Walker Parking Consultants. This report will help to ensure there

is adequate, convenient parking for library patrons. In addition, it will provide recommendations to enhance the
pedestrian experience within the library neighborhood.

Interim library needs

We continue to evaluate the best option for a temporary library location and work through lease negotiations. The
temporary library will provide scaled-down space that prioritizes access to the library collection and technology. While



we are not able to announce a location at this time, staff also has been working with partners to develop plans for
programming in other places in the community during construction.

We are working with CCS, our move management consultants, to draft an RFP for moving company proposals. The
moving company will move all collections as well as staff items to designated places in the temporary location,
including disassembling and reassembling the shelving and placing materials back in the correct order. This RFP also
covers our move back to the new library in 2023.

The Friends of Appleton Public Library held a book sale to deal with the backlog of donated and withdrawn materials
that have been accumulating throughout the pandemic. This has started the important process of clearing out back of
house spaces.

Library staff have been working with the Finance Department on plans for appropriate disposal of items and are
currently listing some items on govdeals.com. We are researching using an auction service to complete the process
furniture and no longer needed items. All revenue earned from this process goes to the City’s general fund per our
Procurement Policy.

Staff is also coordinating with the Outagamie Waupaca Library System (OWLS) on issues of data circuit relocation and
reconfiguring APL’s connection to the OWLS network. OWLS is currently a tenant in the library and will also be
relocating to their own offices.

College Avenue North Neighborhood Planning

The Planappleton.com website and interactive map has been visited 2435 total times by 752 unique users. Thank you
for helping to get the word out about this site.

The design studio sessions for the College North Neighborhood Plan were held on November 9 and November 10 for
the public to offer input. At these meetings, RDG Planning & Design shared an annotated map of concepts,
suggestions, and thoughts. Discussion and updated development concepts per feedback from the November design
studios and city review as well as review the mobility network will continue. Updates will be shared with the public
again in late January/early February.

Budget and Funding

In November, initial estimates came in with the project costs at approximately $39 million including pandemic-driven
escalation costs. Regardless, the City of Appleton commitment will remain $26.4 million and the Mayor has allocated
$2 million in ARPA funding for broadband network infrastructure.

Staff are working to determine the remaining funding to provide a diverse funding package for this project including
grants and fundraising. The Friends of Appleton Public Library are conducting a feasibility study to determine potential
for private fundraising.

Stay up to date on the library project at apl.org/planning and sign up for email updates at apl.org/email and select
“Building Process Updates.”



https://apl.org/planning

Hmong Language Class Fall 2019 — Fall 2021

Hmong Language Class was designed in response to a survey conducted in 2018 that showed Hmong
families interest in preserving the Hmong language and culture. Since then we have offered 4 semesters
of Hmong language classes, fall 2019, fall 2020, spring 2021, fall 2021, serving approximately 175
students. We saw an increase in participation from families outside of the Fox Cities region when we
switched to a virtual learning environment in 2020, reaching families in Colorado, California, and other
Midwest states. This semester, | translated a hello/goodbye song in Hmong and taught the students how
to sing it. The students were able to sing the song in Hmong all by themselves by the end of the
semester and that’s what I’'m most proud of!

Pa Ja Yang Hmong Family Outreach Specialist

Fall 2021 (October-November)

E « % ¢ 7] .l 6O3PM



~ [ 4 §0 al  559PM

Miss Karen

Leave

E o« [P ) §] il 52PM



Miss Karen

E o« [P #) §] .l 6:39PM

Miss Karen

E o« [P ) § .l TA5PM



Esme Vang
Children's Team

% ) §0 .

=
Sas e

- b

- I

Children's Team




	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_November 16 2021 Meeting Minutes
	0003_1_Bill Register November 2021
	0003_2_November 2021 Budget Report
	0004_1_Library Budget
	0004_2_Special Revenue Fund ROR
	0004_3_2022 Library CIP
	0005_1_TO Change December 2021 memo
	0006_1_2022 Service Agreement FINAL
	Article IV:  OWLS Responsibilities

	0007_1_Building Project Update December 2021
	0017_1_December 2021 Childrens Programming

